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From one generation to the next. Right now, New Zealand’s energy 
sector is entering a period of transition. Hydro in particular 
has served us well, but as the country continues to grow, energy 
demand continues to climb. New Zealand needs to be taking a 
wider, more even-handed view of the types of energy the country 
needs going forward, and more particularly, how and where 
we choose to access that energy. For that to happen, traditional 
generation strengths must be allowed to evolve into a nation-
ally-focused energy portfolio that remains balanced, diversi-
fi ed, sustainable and stable. There are challenges. We can’t rely 
solely on energy effi ciency or current generation capabilities to 
keep meeting the increasing levels of consumer demand. The 
numbers don’t stack up. So we need to be talking openly about 
what we can expect from our technical heritage, the options for 
innovation and about how national benefits should reconcile 
with local effects. The conversation requires candid exchange, 
open minds and long term views. Working today for tomorrow’s 
challenges is about building from what we have, not worrying 
about what we appear to lack. Mighty River Power has much to 
contribute to this dialogue that spans generations; partnership, 
investment, research and development, and the acquisition and 
consolidation of a realistic and resilient balance of energy options.



We need to be finding 
new fuel sources 

and creating options now 
to take to market 

while the fuel supply is known 
and 

the market conditions are more 
conducive to investment. 



The key word here is drawing. It’s not immediate. It’s not dramatic. It’s not even medium-term as 

most of us understand that timeframe. But it is an issue. It won’t go away. It concerns a shift in gen-

erational needs and opportunities. We have options. There are billions of tonnes of coal for example. 

The dilemma lies in reconciling accessing that resource to New Zealand’s commitments under the 

Kyoto protocol. Historically coal has always been seen as the dirty technology. Emissions from new 

or refurbished plants are significantly lower than a decade ago, but a lot of scientists suggest that 

coal still produces a residual effect in global climate change over 50 – 100 years. Does that mean we 

should rule it out completely? To some, the decision to even consider coal may seem onerous. On the 

other hand, without energy, we are dead economically. 

Actively pursuing energy. Electricity forms the lifeblood of the economy. It keeps our lights on and 

our companies competitive. New Zealand industry is relatively energy intensive, because of all the 

processing we do to add value to products. As a country, we derive enormous benefit from keep-

ing prices as competitive as possible whilst maintaining the security of supply that the community 

demands. Compared to electricity prices globally, ours are towards the bottom of the lower quartile. 

The challenge is to provide electricity as securely and efficiently as possible, so that we can continue 

to live as a first world nation. Mighty River Power is certainly playing its part. The work we’re doing 

at the Mokai, Kawerau and Rotokawa geothermal sites is detailed later in this Report. It amounts to 

one of the most actively pursued geothermal exploration and knowledge expansion programmes in 

New Zealand in the last two decades. Over the next ten years, Mighty River Power will spend tens of 

millions of dollars developing geothermal capabilities. We continue to run the country’s most active 

biomass-powered generation programme and we are currently evaluating the merits of converting 

Marsden B into a coal-fired station. But whilst it’s relatively easy to talk about the need for alterna-

tives, many of the new generation fuel options come at a price. For example, new gas opportunities 

are likely to cost around $6 a gigajoule compared to approximately $2.50 for Maui gas. Also, gas cur-

rently represents around 25% of the nation’s energy supply, which means it is a significant source 

of fuel to power the country. There are two immediate take-outs: electricity prices are going up and 

significantly more investigation, and therefore investment, is needed over the medium term to con-

tinue looking for options. The questions that remain are what generation options should be devel-

oped and how much will prices rise.

Closer than it looks. Development timelines mean that timeframes start to compress rapidly. Geo-

thermal and thermal have at least a five year lead time, and whilst we can have confidence in fuel 

Fuelling our future. Few people have any tolerance for naysayers, and with good reason. We’re all 

fed up with alarmists, painting pictures of doom and gloom for what seems like their own selfish 

ends. Such behaviour engenders little but cynicism. However, simply pretending there is nothing to 

worry about, or that somehow, somewhere, someone will sort it out is naive. Hope is not a strategy. 

The dialogue that needs to be taking place around our energy future as a country involves neither 

end-of-the-world prophesies nor ignore-at-will optimism. It’s all about the fact that we need to be 

paying closer attention to our fuel sources, because under present conditions, they simply will not 

last. Given the lead times required to achieve change in this sector, by the time that becomes obvious 

to everyone, it could well be too late.

Problem! What problem? Right now, it’s hard to see that there is any problem at all. This year, we’ve 

announced a record operating result and our lowest ever levels of debt. The lakes are brimming thanks 

to above average rainfall, the weather for the most part has been favourable, and the energy has flowed. 

To help make this happen coal is being burned to retain better hydro reserves. Short term – today, right 

now, this year – there is no issue. Energy’s greatest asset is also its greatest deception in that regard. 

Because availability is “instant”, there is widespread expectation that the power will just be there 

– and will continue to be there. It’s all under control. For more than three decades it largely has been.

Growing beyond our means. Hydro and gas have delivered relatively cheap and plentiful supplies of 

energy that have worked remarkably well and very consistently. In the meantime though, the coun-

try has grown, and our energy usage has kept pace to support economic growth and the lifestyles we 

enjoy. National demand for energy is currently rising at a compounding rate of around 2% per year. 

Whilst that may not sound like a lot, in point of fact it represents an increase equivalent to Mighty 

River Power’s entire Waikato River network’s output every six years. The good news is that recent 

decisions on Kupe and Pohokura gas mean that a new large gas-fired power station will have the fuel 

it needs through until approximately 2010 to compensate for the gradual run-down of Maui. We have 

a window of time. But if we are to continue forward confidently, then hard decisions need to be made 

about the trade-offs we’re willing to make economically, socially and environmentally. 

The issue is not capacity, it’s access to fuel. We have been saying for more than a year now that the 

problem is not about generation capacity, it’s all about fuel availability. Fuel is a necessary precon-

dition to having that generation capacity. The question is not whether we have the power to run the 

country; it’s what the country is prepared to pay for that fuel, socially, economically and environ-

mentally. The days of not needing to think too hard about our energy future are drawing to a close. 
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supply for most of the rest of the decade, there is a gaping hole at the end of that decade when existing 

power stations may not have access to fuel. Hence the urgency to find and develop large gas fields 

and to bring projects such as geothermal, wind and small hydro on-stream now while also prepar-

ing for the prospect that fuels such as coal may be necessary. We need to be finding new fuel sources 

and creating energy options now to take to market whilst the fuel supply is known and the market 

conditions are more conducive to investment. If we wait until we need them, it will be too late. 

Apathy isn’t helping. Sadly, for many people, this energy crossroad falls into the camp of don’t need 

to know. Individualism, corporate performance expectations and crisis intolerance have ingrained 

a deep-seated expectation that businesses should deal with their issues, not talk about them. 

Collective consideration and purpose has been replaced by a public mentality best characterised as 

“that’s not my problem”. Fine – but for the fact that these issues concern all of us, relate to assets that 

we all have a deep stake in, and have the potential to affect how we can and will live here. In bringing 

these matters to attention, we are not shirking our responsibilities. We are taking actions, however, 

we cannot and do not wish to make some decisions unilaterally.

The right balance. There has been considerable recent debate over the Resource Management Act 

– and with good reason. We have no real problems with the Act itself. We applaud the obligation to 

protect the environment, and the requirement that all concerned remedy, mitigate or avoid adverse 

environmental impacts. We also believe strongly in the consultation process. One of our goals is that 

our own relationships with stakeholders on the Waikato River for example continue to be strong and 

characterised by mutual trust. Dialogue between parties is a healthy, democratic process, and one 

we subscribe to fully. The issue is the terms of reference within which that dialogue takes place. We 

believe the Act needs to be reviewed to make sure its implementation is more workable. We also have 

concerns that, although it is a nationally focused piece of legislation, the Resource Management Act 

has become effectively local in implementation – focused on specific geographically based environ-

mental, cultural and amenity values. We’d like to see national benefits given more consideration. 

We’d also like to raise awareness of the economic implications of decisions either way. Sustainability, 

after all, is about much more than environmental matters. It’s a delicate balance based on achieving 

an environment that sustains communities, economic realities and natural habitats.

Looking beyond local. Regional councils and central government have responsibilities to their com-

munities to understand such matters, to present communities with options, consequences and the 

wider story about supply security, and to ask for their views. They must therefore reflect community 
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concerns as the people perceive them and as those views are expressed to them, but be conscious of 

the national implications. Geothermal consents are a case in point. The Government has signalled 

an interest in more geothermal exploration, but under many council plans opportunities for geo-

thermal development are highly restrictive. Most geothermal is low impact and rurally based. It is 

a truly green energy opportunity, and yet most councils have proposed policies for geothermal that 

are based on specific and exceptional situations rather than the whole industry. There are examples 

of good leadership in local government. Environment Waikato took a refreshingly broad view in 

considering re-consenting of the Waikato hydro system. They involved non-politicians and non-

regional experts who were independent of council and made decisions at least in part with a national 

consideration. The result was a consenting process that still placed demands on Mighty River Power 

to justify its viewpoints, but that allowed all involved to negotiate openly, frankly and fairly.

The situation is radical, not the solution. It’s important to recognise that no-one is asking for radi-

cal decisions. Nuclear is not realistically on anyone’s agenda, and will not be in most people’s life-

time. Wind, coal, geothermal, hydro... these are all known technologies more or less. The radicalism 

lies in our situation as an island nation cut off from most fuel supplies. We need to be self suffi-

cient, and security of supply demands that we invest. In order for that to happen, we must be able 

to choose appropriate environmental options, knowing that they are backed up by the right frame-

work of regulations and regulatory consents with a national weighting. The issues demand evolution, 

not revolution.

Looking to move forward. We’re very clear about why we’re having this discussion and what we want 

from it. Decisions. We want regional government to take actions to reflect sustainability within the 

internationally accepted framework for sustainable development. We want national interests to bal-

ance local effects in regional plans and resource consent considerations. We want to see all generation 

technologies discussed publicly and openly, along with the broad price implications of implementing 

them. We want government leadership on long term sustainable development policies and a much 

better understanding of the ramifications of climate change policy. The need for this discussion is 

not unique to New Zealand. These matters are on the agenda of just about every electricity industry 

globally, but we need to deal with them first because our geographical isolation simply won’t let us buy 

more time. In many ways, that’s a good thing. We’re an adaptable country, filled with bright and sensi-

ble people. We have the pioneering spirit and the creativity to revisit structures and systems to address 

issues. We need to approach change proactively and constructively – traits that suit our character. 
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We’re 
shifting 

generations. 
It’s time to 

move 
forward. 

The questions are: 
where to, 
how fast, 

how much 
and 

at what cost?
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$113.8 million
Issue of 8 year Fixed Rate Bonds

$99.8 million
Net surplus after taxation

$428.3 million
Total debt outstanding at year end

$75.0 million
Special dividend to Shareholding Ministers declared in June 2004

$199.6 million 
Operating surplus before interest, non-recurring items and taxation

Highlights 2004

Waikato/Taupo
Hydro System
Resource consents were 
granted for these areas, 

subject to appeal
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$100 million
Expansion of Tuar0paki Power Company’s Mokai geothermal plant 

from 56mw to 100mw on track for Autumn 2005

300,000 customers
Our retail customer base increased substantially, due to new connections

4 years
Length of our commitment to the New Zealand Rowing Association as the exclusive 

sponsor of the Mighty River Power High Performance Programme

ISO 9001-2000 certifi cation
Mercury Energy became the fi rst energy retailer 

to achieve this certifi cation

Growth
Signifi cant new metering connections
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Outstanding Performance: We are pleased to report our 

best annual result since formation – the culmination of work 

that has taken place over the past five years. Careful plan-

ning and strategic direction setting in that time has seen a 

strong diversification in our generation assets, sustained 

growth in Mercury Energy, and considerable growth in new 

meter installations by Metrix. We’ve also benefited from the 

backdrop of a healthy economic environment. 

Our financial results and reduced levels of debt has 

enabled us to commence investment in the new generation 

capacity the country will need by the end of the decade. 

A focus on development: We made organisational changes in 

January 2004 to reflect the strong generation development 

focus of the company. A new geothermal business unit was 

established to galvanise efforts in harnessing these unique 

renewable energy opportunities. The operational businesses 

involving Mercury Energy, Metrix and existing hydro and 

thermal generation, together with Financial, Information and 

Human Resources services, were consolidated into a Group 

Operations structure. Significant improvements in efficiency 

and quality of service delivery have been achieved in these 

businesses over the past five years. 

These structural changes signal a broadening of our 

intentions to maximise efficiency gains and pursue a strong 

development emphasis, based on our priority to reinvest 

earnings to deliver new generation capabilities. 

The first of these developments, a $100 million expan-

sion of the Mokai geothermal power station in association 

with the Tuaropaki Trust, will be commissioned in the new 

financial year.

Strong financial results: The company recorded its best 

ever operating result with operating surplus before interest, 

non-recurring items and taxation rising from $119.5 million 

in 2003 to $199.6 million in 2004. Hydro generation volumes 

were the best in the past five years with a 12% increase on 

the previous year. However there was a reduction in hydro 

generation sales revenue of $106 million with the greatest 

influence being a reduction in wholesale prices from the very 

high levels experienced in 2003. 

Non-generation sales volumes were also up by 26% 

reflecting increased retail sales and the significant hedge 

volumes sold to commercial customers throughout New 

Zealand during 2003. The reduction in generation revenue 

due to price effects was largely offset by the decline in energy 

purchase costs.

Net surplus after taxation at $99.8 million was below 

the 2003 result, but after adjusting for non-recurring items 

in each year, there was an underlying improvement of $35.2 

million. The significant non-recurring item in 2004 was 

associated with termination of inherited arrangements with 

Taranaki Combined Cycle plant owned by Contact Energy. A 

balance sheet provision had been created on commencement 

of business in 1999 to reflect the onerous pricing conditions 

of a long-term power purchase contract. When set against 

a termination payment of $69.7 million at the end of June, 

this crystallised a one-off accounting cost of $14.1 million. 

Board and Chief Executive Report
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Termination of these agreements with Contact Energy will 

strengthen future cashflows.

Operating cashflow, after adjusting for non-recurring 

items, was $158.7 million, a $46.0 million improvement on 

2003, reflecting the quality of the improved operating surplus.

Our balance sheet continued to strengthen, with net debt at 

year end reduced from $465.9 million to $424.9 million, the 

lowest since incorporation. Non-current liabilities associ-

ated with energy contracts reduced by $54.8 million as a 

consequence of termination of the Taranaki Combined Cycle 

inherited arrangements. Equity to total assets ratio increased 

from 57.3% in 2003 to 58.6% in 2004, while the percentage 

of net debt to net debt plus equity improved from 35.1% to 

32.4% in the same period. 

The reduction in debt, lengthening of debt maturity profile 

and improvement in financial robustness was recognised in 

a credit upgrade, issued by Standard & Poor’s in March 2004. 

Our long term credit rating was upgraded from BBB to BBB+.

Following the oversubscription of our $200 million, 10 year 

Fixed Rate Bond issue in May 2003, a further $113.8 million 

of 8 year Fixed Rate Bonds were placed in September 2003. 

The Company also extended to 2007 its $200 million cash 

advances and standby facility which supports its Commercial 

Paper Programme. The issue of Fixed Rate Bonds and the 

extension of the cash advances and standby facility materially 

strengthens our debt maturity profile.

Prior to year end Directors declared a special dividend 

of $75 million which was paid in July 2004. This dividend 

reflected the fact that no dividend was paid from 2003 profits 

while the Minister of Energy considered, then ultimately 

rejected, company proposals to spend $80 million-$100 million 

to re-commission Marsden B on oil as a dry year reserve 

plant. Since incorporation the company has now paid dividends 

representing approximately 30% of net profits. This relatively 

low payout ratio reflects focus on reducing the high debt in 

place at commencement of business in order to position for 

investment in new generation capacity.

Continued investment in capacity: We currently have a number 

of projects underway to add fuel sources and generating 

capacity over the next five to ten years. Most are at the 

stage of technical feasibility investigation and community 

consultation prior to resource consents application. A total 

of 130MW of geothermal capacity is planned for the next two 

to three years.

An indication of our commitment is the 25% shareholding 

we took in 2003 in the TPC Holdings and the related 56MW 

geothermal plant at Mokai. A $100 million expansion project 

is underway there right now, and is on track for commis-

sioning in autumn 2005. This will bring total capacity close 

to 100MW at Mokai.

Work is planned at Rotokawa in 2004 to relocate reinjec-

tion wells and to provide more production capacity. There 

are plans to build a further 39MW of capacity on the field in 

conjunction with the Tauhara North No.2 Trust. This capacity 

could be available as early as summer 2006/2007.

Both of these geothermal developments involve partner-

ships with Maori trusts. In 2003, we entered another such -aori trusts. In 2003, we entered another such -

partnership with the Putauaki Trust. We have completed the 

drilling of exploratory wells on their land over part of the 

Kawerau geothermal reservoir, and are currently undertaking 

testing to establish energy availability. Work is underway to 

progress a 50MW geothermal power plant development with 

commissioning planned for 2007. 

We see considerable potential for the uncommissioned 

Marsden B plant as a low cost coal-fired station. Over the 

next year we will investigate feasibility, begin community con-

sultation and apply for resource consents. Should the project 

proceed, the decision about the major capital commitment 

required is still more than a year away. Planning, consent 

and construction should take three to five years. 

A salute to our people: It would be difficult to overstate the 

human effort required to get Mighty River Power to this point – 

and yet in the last year, our people have lifted their game again, 

making an even greater contribution to our achievements. 

Involvement at all levels has helped drive company success. 

A fresh sense of teamwork and co-operation has emerged 

– the result not just of a refocused and integrated company 

structure but also a number of important internal initiatives. 

Our sincere thanks and gratitude to all our people, and to 

the families who support them, for the work done to date. 

This year’s result is a direct reflection of their contributions 

and talents. 

During the financial year there was a change to our 

Board, with Wayne Walden’s valuable contribution ending 

upon his decision to not seek a further term. We are pleased 

to welcome John Baird to the Board.

The year ahead: The 2005 year will see us creating and 

developing new generation capacity options off the back of 

a solid business platform. A strong storage position and 

healthy inflows at Lake Taupo has meant a positive start to 

the new year in terms of generation and will enable us to con-

tinue to provide a significant contribution to New Zealand’s 

energy supply. We also have high performance expectations 

for Mercury Energy and Metrix as they continue to draw on 

their superior service talents to aggressively pursue healthy 

margins, expanded market share and geographical coverage. 

Rob Challinor

Chairman

25 August 2004

Doug Heffernan

Chief Executive

25 August 2004
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Mighty River Power’s generation assets collectively account 

for up to 22% of the country’s peak energy demand. Hydro 

generation, centred around Lake Taupo and the Waikato River, 

remains the core of our business. However, the last five years 

have seen considerable broadening of our generation potential 

with over 20% of annual production now non-hydro. 

A flexible portfolio: While the backbone of our generation con-

tinues to be hydro, we are increasingly diversifying fuel types 

and sources. Currently, non-hydro includes our Southdown 

gas fired cogeneration plant, biomass generation assets at 

Greenmount, Rosedale, and Silverstream, and an expanding 

geothermal generation capability. In addition the consultation 

and consent process is underway to recommission Marsden B 

as a coal-fired station. Mighty River Power now has the potential 

to achieve a much more flexible asset portfolio based around 

a diversified fuel base. 

Investigation of other options has also continued. In the 

past year, we have identified likely wind farm sites, investigated 

potential small-scale hydro developments and announced an 

intention to form a gas exploration fund with Contact Energy. 

Extremes in hydro levels: The year has certainly brought its 

fair share of challenges for our hydro generation. Year end 

2003 saw very low water levels in Lake Taupo on the back 

of the autumn water shortage. Fortunately, by the start of 

2004, the storage position had improved as inflows increased 

through spring and early summer. In February 2004, there was 

Generation
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a significant jump in inflows to the Taupo/Waikato catchment 

that took us above our normal operating range. 

Such extremes – from near empty to overfull – highlight 

the volatility of working with a natural environment and the 

challenging hydrological period over the past 15 months. 

Despite the variability, hydro generation was close to the 

historic mean level of 4,200GWh on an annual basis. There 

was also an abnormal degree of spill – 90GWh – as we sought 

to avoid widespread flooding in February, by working in 

consultation with Environment Waikato to achieve the best 

outcomes for communities across a large geographic area 

in a rapidly changing situation. We received congratulations 

from the Waikato District Council for our role in assisting 

Environment Waikato in this process.

Flexibility in Cogeneration: The 122MW gas fired cogeneration 

plant at Southdown has operated as a base load station since 

commissioning in 1996, but the rising cost of gas has meant 

a more flexible approach to the mode of operation.

Market leading risk management: Wholesale market pricing 

throughout the year has mirrored the volatility in national 

hydro levels: reasonably elevated post-shortage, but dropping 

away since February as water inflows have remained high and 

thermal fuel stocks have become stronger than in 2003. 

Such volatility has prompted Mighty River Power to redou-

ble its efforts to deliver a level of security for customers 

through risk management tools. We have continued to make 

hedge products and prices available to commercial consum-

ers. We are a key player in the development of a transparent 

forward price market between generators and through Mercury 

Energy, the most active provider of electricity risk manage-

ment products to large customers throughout New Zealand. 

We believe much work is needed on all sides to develop 

this part of the industry further. We will continue to invest in 

educating the market, to further develop the forward price 

market and to introduce new tools and services to allow 

customers to better manage risks. Wider adoption of risk 

management contracts rather than the use of traditional 

physical contracts is also an important factor in achieving 

better demand response.

Operational excellence: Hydro generation sources continues 

to provide the majority of our generation output but requires 

that we optimise the Taupo/Waikato system to sustain both 

the environment and our business. We have a commercial 

responsibility, through continual improvement in our opera-

tions, to extract the best possible performance from the 

system. This year has seen us make good progress in that 

regard, with the generation organisation being reconfigured 

to focus on enhanced asset planning and utilisation and 

to implement flexible maintenance programmes that are 

responsive to market criteria. 

Mighty River Power has always regarded building and protecting 

stakeholder relationships as being of major importance to the 

company and its sustainable value. This has been a significant 

contributing factor to our success to date in obtaining our 

Taupo/Waikato consents. As detailed in last year’s Report, 

we sought further flexibility in our hydro operations to make 

better use of the Taupo and Waikato systems. By year’s end, 

we had received consents on most things we asked for and 

concluded negotiations with almost all appellants. We are com-

mitted to negotiating outcomes with the remaining appellants.

Growing our geothermal strengths: We invested significantly 

in our geothermal capabilities over the past year with the 

appointment of a specialist geothermal general manager and 

the building of a geothermal-focused team to further develop 

current sites, and investigate new opportunities. We also 

developed an integrated approach to managing geothermal 

fuel and plant resources.

By continually increasing our scientific understanding of 

geothermal systems, we can lower risk and cost and encour-

age more sustainable use of resources. We have invested in 

world class people with the skills and experience to grow 

our expertise and understanding of geothermal fields over 

the next five to ten years. 

Additional production well drilling for the Tuaropaki 

Power Company’s 40MW expansion at Mokai is now com-

plete with surplus geothermal capacity available to provide 

operating flexibility and risk management for the expanded 

plant. Improved flexibility is also being advanced at Rotokawa, 

with drilling currently underway. At both sites our operation 

and maintenance teams have secured record levels of plant 

availability.

Over the next few years, with the new 40MW plant at 

Mokai, potential developments of a 50MW plant at Kawerau 

and a 39MW plant at Rotokawa, Mighty River Power will 

invest over $250 million in one of the most active geothermal 

development programmes within New Zealand in the last 

two decades. 

Geothermal exploration requires a high level of invest-

ment and carries a comparable level of risk. Whilst the 

potential to do such exploration has obviously been avail-

able for many years, the appropriate commercial incentive 

has not. However, with increases in the cost of alterna-

tive energy forms, uncertainty about future sources of 

fuel very much on our minds, and the environmentally 

compatible nature of geothermal generation, the timing 

is now right. We have put together a unique skill base for 

the exploration, development and operation of geother-

mal power plants which will ensure these developments 

can occur with confidence, and set a platform for further 

geothermal development.
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Mercury Energy provides electricity and gas services to 

a residential and small business customer base mainly in 

the central and upper North Island and to large business 

customers throughout New Zealand. Over the past year, we 

have continued to grow market share, drawing on both our 

extensive range of product options as well as industry leading 

service levels. Our combined electricity and gas offering, first 

introduced in 2002, now has more than 10,000 customers and 

is continuing to grow.

Continuing innovation: Our customer base of 300,000 is 

also diversifying geographically, with over 27% of custom-

ers outside of our original incumbent area. The quality of 

our service offering has enabled us to maintain our market 

share on our traditional incumbent network, whilst achieving 

steady net growth in other areas including Greater Auckland, 

Northland, the Waikato, Thames Valley and Bay of Plenty. 

The continued growth in business has been supported 

by new initiatives, such as One Bill™, and Online Billing. The 

former allows customers the convenience of consolidating 

their gas and electricity over multiple properties on a single 

bill. The latter offers the convenience of a fully electronic 

(paperless) bill. Both products demonstrate not just envi-

ronmental awareness and commitment, but also a continued 

Retail
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determination to streamline operations and deliver customers 

what they want, in the form that suits them best. Our Duo™ 

product, which provides one account for gas and electricity, 

continues to grow. 

Successful sponsorships: As part of our commitment to the 

Starship Foundation we launched an innovative programme 

that allows customers the convenience of making a small 

monthly donation to the Starship Hospital as part of their 

bill. After only 3 months we have more than 2,300 customers 

using this facility. While Starship is Mercury’s most significant 

sponsorship, it is just a part of our community commitment 

which also includes support for a number of free family 

concerts and lighting for public facilities. 

Platinum grade approach to the environment: Our continued 

commitment to the environment was recognised when Mercury 

was awarded Platinum level Enviromark status. The award 

rewards our belief that environmental responsibility and an 

efficient, profitable business are complementary. We have 

reduced our levels of waste significantly and now recycle 

almost everything that remains. 

This achievement, together with our efforts last year to 

encourage customers to save power to avert the potential 

energy shortage through energy saving rebates (10c a unit 

for every unit saved), also earned us first prize in the EECA 

energy efficiency awards. 

Robust systems: Mercury Energy has invested significantly 

in recent years to hone its service offering to a level that is 

industry leading. This success is underpinned by robust data 

processes which are integral to service delivery excellence 

and this year we were rewarded with ISO 9001-2000 recogni-

tion – the first electricity retailer to achieve this.

Retailing is a competitive business in which good service is 

the key differentiator. While customer satisfaction is at its 

highest level since formation, with all forms of complaint 

having fallen away to very low levels, we remain acutely 

aware of increasing service expectations and are committed 

to delivering this to our customers. 
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Metrix provides meters and meter reading services across 

the Auckland region and increasingly further afield. Over 

the last year there has been a strong focus on service both 

in relation to new meter installations and meter reading. By 

year end we were reading 99.3% of our meters each quarter 

and 99.99% annually – an industry leading performance. 

This achievement has been a joint initiative with Mercury 

Energy and has been made possible by offering customers 

with meter access difficulties a range of alternatives to suit 

their circumstances, including reading on weekends, evenings 

and at specially arranged times. 

We have also been trialling new technology that will 

enable us to offer remote meter reading as a more conven-

ient solution for customers with access difficulties and to 

improve service to remote locations, a number of which are not 

permanently occupied. While this functionality has been 

available in the market for some time, it is only recently that 

systems with the necessary value/reliability combination 

have become available. 

Over the past year, there has been very strong growth in new 

meter installations largely as a result of property growth in 

the Auckland region. However, we are also gradually expand-

ing beyond Auckland in conjunction with Mercury Energy, 

and this year we began offering meters in Counties and the 

Eastern Bay of Plenty. 

Metering
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The Board

David McConnell’s commercial background is in electrical engineer-

ing and business development. He is currently Managing Director of 

McConnell International, which includes related companies; McConnell 

International Property Ltd, Steelpipe New Zealand Ltd, and Hawkins 

Construction Ltd. He is a trustee of Committee for Auckland, which 

focuses on promoting initiatives to improve Auckland City’s attrac-

tiveness as a location to live and work. David has been on the board of 

Mighty River Power since its establishment in April 1999. 

Ian Fraser has a comprehensive background in engineering and engi-

neering management, and is a director of Beca Group, the largest New 

Zealand owned consulting engineering company. Ian also manages 

the southern region of Beca Group and is a member of the Registered 

Construction Managers Board for the New Zealand Institute of Building. 

He is a past president of the Association of Consulting Engineers of New 

Zealand. Ian has been a director of Mighty River Power since it began 

operations in April 1999. 

Tania Simpson was appointed as a director of Mighty River Power in 

November 2001 and is the founding director of Maori policy adviser, -aori policy adviser, -

Kowhai Consulting. She is of Ngati Maniapoto and Ngati Manu descent 

and lives in the Maniapoto district. She has previously held management 

positions in Housing Corporation, Ministry of Maori Development and -aori Development and -

Office of Treaty Settlements and has worked on social policy, economic 

development and Treaty-related matters. Tania is a Trustee of Te Kura 

Kaupapa Maori O Oparure. -aori O Oparure. -

Rob Challinor, Chairman, served as a director of Electricity Corporation 

of New Zealand from 1992 to 1998. He has been chairman of the Mighty 

River Power board since the Company commenced business in April 

1999. He has been a partner in an international accounting firm and has 

worked as a Corporate Finance Advisor. Rob is currently a partner and 

director of investment bankers Northington Partners. He is a director 

of The Warehouse Group, Ports of Auckland and international strategy 

consultancy L.E.K. Consulting’s Australasian Advisory Board. He is also 

chairman of human resource consultancy Sheffield and investment 

company Kingfish and a Fellow of the Institute of Directors. 

Carole Durbin is Deputy Chair of the board and chair of the Audit 

Committee and has held both positions since the Company began 

trading in April 1999. She spent nine years on the board of Transpower, 

the last few years of that time as its deputy chair. She has indepth 

experience and understanding of the industry across transmission, 

generation and distribution. She is a partner of law firm Simpson 

Grierson. In addition to providing legal advice to clients, she acts as 

a mediator and arbitrator in commercial disputes. She is an advanced 

panel member of LEADR and a Fellow of the Arbitrators’ and Mediators’ 

Institute and is one of the MARIA panel of arbitrators. She is a Fellow 

of the Institute of Directors and a Commissioner on the board of the 

Earthquake Commission. 

Caroline Ball was appointed a director of Mighty River Power in November 

2002. She has extensive experience in New Zealand’s energy industry 

having been Chief Executive for Fitzroy Worley, and General Manager 

Transmission at Natural Gas Corporation. Caroline is Managing Director 

of Strategic Developments, a consulting firm specialising in business 

growth issues and investments. She is deputy chair of the Western 

Institute of Technology at Taranaki and a member of the Taranaki District 

Health Board Hospital Advisory Committee. 

Sandy (Samford) Maier is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 

He has worked in international commercial and investment banking with 

Citicorp/Citibank for 15 years in various management positions in the 

Caribbean, South America and Australasia. He has lived and worked in 

New Zealand since 1986, serving on the board of Bank of New Zealand 

and as the Statutory Manager of DFC New Zealand, for which he received 

a 1990 Commemoration Medal for services to New Zealand. For the past 

10 years he has had his own international management consulting firm 

specialising in strategic financial and human resource issues. He has 

served as chief executive and board member of a number of companies, 

and has been a director of Mighty River Power since April 2002. 

John Baird has been managing director of several consumer products 

businesses and is currently a director of Ovita, Motion Industries, 

Sleepyhead and the Auckland Rugby Union. He is a former director of 

Goodman Fielder, Goodman Fielder Wattie, Ceramco, Baycorp and a 

number of private companies.
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Governance Framework: Mighty River Power operates under 

a corporate governance framework, consisting of its legal 

requirements (under such legislation as the Companies Act 

1993 and the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986), and formal 

and informal practices adopted by the Board of Directors. 

These include the Board Charter, the Code of Ethics, Audit 

Committee Terms of Reference, Remuneration Committee 

Terms of Reference and the Trading Disclosure Policy 

– Company Securities.

The Board is responsible for corporate governance of 

the Company – in other words, the direction and control that 

is undertaken by the Directors of the Company and also for 

their accountabilities to shareholders and others for the 

Company’s performance and its compliance with the appro-

priate laws and standards. 

Corporate Governance policies, practices, and processes

The Company’s Corporate Governance policies, practices, and 

processes are considered to meet or exceed the Corporate 

Governance principles and guidelines recommended by the 

New Zealand Securities Commission. In particular:

Ethical Standards:

• The Company has a written Code of Ethics and a policy 

on trading in Company securities

Board Composition and Performance:

• There are eight Directors, all of whom are non-executive 

and independent*

• The Company has a written Board Charter

• There is a formal process for selecting Directors*

• Written expectations are provided to all Directors

• Directors undertake appropriate training

• Directors periodically meet without management present 

and independent professional advice is available to them

• There is an efficient flow of information to the Board from 

management

• Formal Board/Director performance reviews are undertaken

• Information on Directors (including their independent status) 

is included in the Company’s Annual Report

Board Committees:

Audit Committee

• There are five members, all of whom are independent, non-

executive Directors

• There is a written Audit Committee Charter

• All members are financially literate and at least one is a 

chartered accountant (or has another recognised form of 

financial expertise)

• Performance reviews are undertaken

• Employees and other Directors attend by invitation only

• The External Auditor is independent**

• Members are identified in the Company’s Annual Report

Remuneration Committee

• The Remuneration Committee does not consider Directors’ 

remuneration*

• There is a written Remuneration Committee charter

Reporting and Disclosure:

• There is a process for assuring Directors of the quality and 

integrity of financial reporting

• There is an effective system of internal control for reliable 

financial reporting

• There are policies and procedures to ensure disclosures 

comply with all applicable legislation

• Corporate governance documents are readily available to 

stakeholders

• Annual reporting is undertaken on compliance with Corporate 

Governance principles

Remuneration:

• There is a clear policy for remuneration of Directors and 

Executives that is fair and reasonable in a competitive 

market*

• Directors fees are approved by the shareholders*

Risk Management:

• There is a rigorous process for risk management and internal 

control

• The Board receives regular reports on the operation of risk 

management and internal control processes

Corporate Governance
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• The Company reports at least annually to stakeholders 

on risk identification and management and on relevant 

internal controls***

• The Board receives written statements from the Chief 

Executive and Group Finance Manager that assurance on 

financial statements is founded on a sound and effective 

system of risk management, internal compliance, and control

Auditors:

• The Board fully informs itself on responsibilities of External 

Auditors, who are selected on professional merit**

• There is an Auditor independence policy**

• There is full and frank dialogue among Audit Committee, 

external auditors, and management

• The same audit partner has not led the Company’s audit 

for more than five years

• The Company reports annually on fees paid to auditors, differ-

entiating between audit and non-audit work and explaining 

why non-audit work did not compromise auditor independence

• There is a formal and transparent relationship with the 

Company’s External Auditor (including a formal communi-

cation process)

Shareholder Relations:

• There is clear communication to the Shareholders of the 

goals, strategies, and performance of the Company***

• The Company has an up to date website

• The Shareholders have ready access to the External Auditors***

• The Company has a communications strategy to promote 

effective disclosure***

Stakeholder Interests:

• There are clear policies for the Company’s relationships 

with significant stakeholders

• The Board regularly assesses compliance with these 

policies and reports on them annually

• A Code of Conduct exists to guide compliance with legal 

and other obligations to stakeholders

Nomination, appointment and retirement of directors: The 

company does not have a Nominations Committee. All appoint-

ments to the Board are made by the Shareholding Ministers in 

accordance with Section 36 [1] [a] [i] of the Companies Act 1993. 

All Directors are independent. The Company’s constitution 

requires Directors be appointed for a fixed term of up to three 

years, three months. They may be reappointed for further terms.

Role of the Board: The Board is responsible for the overall 

direction of Mighty River Power’s business and other activi-

ties on behalf of Shareholding Ministers. The Company’s 

principal objectives are to operate as a successful business 

and to be:

• as profitable and efficient as comparable businesses not 

owned by the Crown;

• a good employer – in other words, an employer that operates 

policies which are judged to be fair and equitable in their 

treatment of all staff in all aspects of their employment;

• socially responsible – in other words, an organisation that 

displays a heightened sense of social responsibility with 

regards to the communities in which the business operates 

and that looks to support these communities however and 

wherever it is in a position to do so;

• a leader in sustaining development – working to achieve 

sustainable development for the communities where the 

company operates through world’s best management of 

generation resources.

Board membership: The Board is made up of eight non-

executive Directors. Profiles of the individual Directors can 

be found on pages 32 – 33.

Board meetings: The Board met 12 times during the year. 

The Board’s annual programme is set up by the Chairman in 

conjunction with the Chief Executive. Directors receive papers, 

including regular management reports, to read and consider 

before the meetings. Executives are regularly involved in 

Board discussions and Directors have other opportunities to 

make contact with a wider group of employees, for example 

through visits to operations. Directors are also able to access 

information directly from management, in consultation with 

the Chairman or Chief Executive. 

Director  Board meetings

Rob Challinor 11

Carole Durbin 11

Caroline Ball 11

Ian Fraser 12

Sandy Maier 10

David McConnell 12

Tania Simpson 12

Wayne Walden 7 (until 30/4)

John Baird 1 (from 27/5)

Board Committees: To assist Directors to carry out their 

duties, the Board has two standing committees. Other ad 

hoc committees may be formed from time to time.

Audit Committee: This committee comprises Carole Durbin 

(Chair), Caroline Ball, Ian Fraser, Tania Simpson and Rob 

Challinor. It has met 4 times during this financial year. The 

Audit Committee’s role is to assist the Board in fulfilling its 

duties and responsibilities around the establishment and 

continued effectiveness of the company’s policies, practices, 

procedures and internal control systems. The committee also 

reviews the performances of internal and external auditors. 

Internal audit is outsourced to Deloitte.

All Directors are invited to attend Audit Committee meet-

ings and are provided with copies of meeting minutes and 

any reports received by the Committee.

Remuneration Committee: This committee comprises Sandy 

Maier (Chair), David McConnell, John Baird (who replaced 

Wayne Walden from 28 July 2004) and Rob Challinor. It has 

met 4 times during this financial year. The Remuneration 

Committee’s primary role is to consider detailed recom-

mendations and policies concerning remuneration for the 

company’s employees, including the Chief Executive.

Board Performance Review: Each year, the Board reviews 

the performance of the Board as a whole and each Director. 

This is usually done through a combination of self assessment 

and peer appraisal, with the results collated by an external 

consultant. This is followed by general Board discussion of its 

overall performance as per the findings, and discussions of 

each individual Director’s results between that Director and 

the Chairman. The Chairman’s performance is reviewed by all 

Directors and discussed with the Chairman by the Deputy Chair.

Planning: The Board had one strategic planning and review 

session during the financial year. It also approved the 

Company’s business plan, Statement of Corporate Intent and 

budgets as part of its normal functions.

Risk management: It is a Board responsibility to identify 

and control the Company’s business risks. Major policies 

which are subject to the Board’s approval and review include 

capital investment, treasury, electricity trading and risk 

management, accounting and financial, insurance and del-

egated authority limits.

As part of managing its broader risk profile, the Board 

recognises the importance of full compliance with laws 

controlling environmental activities, management of natural 

resources, health and safety in employment and working 

conditions within buildings, and monitors the company’s 

compliance with relevant statutes through the regular reports 

it receives from management.

Electricity Risk Management policy: The New Zealand elec-

tricity industry in its current structure poses a range of 

market, credit and regulatory risks for market participants. 

More specifically, these include a concentration of partici-

pants in the competitive segments of the industry, an illiquid 

hedge market, heavy reliance on hydro as the primary fuel 

source, with limited ability to substitute thermal fuels, and 

full retail contestability. 

Additionally, the Company has volume risks arising from 

its reliance on hydro generation because two-thirds of its 

energy sales are under variable volume contracts. As a result, 

*Directors are appointed, and directors’ fees determined, by the Shareholders pursuant to the 
State-Owned Enterprises Act. **Auditors are appointed under the Public Audit Act. ***State-
ment of Corporate Intent and other reporting requirements the State-Owned Enterprises Act.

For the year ended 30 June 2004, board meetings were attended 
as follows:
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and as is normal across the industry, the Company cannot 

achieve a perfect hedge of its energy sales volumes. 

Developing a risk management environment and support-

ing framework is the Company’s primary control mechanism 

for managing these risks.

The Company’s risk policy takes into account global 

best practice, the objectives of the company detailed within 

formal business plans and the Statement of Corporate Intent. 

The policy framework is based on the following principles:

• transactions are properly authorised and controlled;

• the initiation, recording, confirmation and settlement of 

transactions are properly segregated;

• transactions are recorded accurately, completely and in a 

timely manner;

• integrity of standing data and core calculations are 

delivered through robust systems;

• transactions are reported by exception;

• company wide risk exposures are reported in a manner that 

is timely, relevant and where appropriate reported against 

limit profiles; and

• personnel are competent and capable.

Relationship with management: The Board establishes the 

overall policy framework within which the business oper-

ates and monitors the performance of management on this 

basis. The Board has delegated day-to-day leadership and 

management of the company to the Chief Executive.

The Board requires management to prepare a business 

plan of the current year and the following two years, and 

an annual budget that details the Company’s capital and 

operational requirements to achieve the plan. The Board 

then monitors actual financial results compared to planned 

and forecast figures on a monthly basis.

The company enjoys a good working relationship between 

Mighty River Power’s Board and management.

Auditor Independence: The Board’s policy on auditor inde-

pendence places responsibility for managing the relationship 

with the Audit Committee. 

During the year the Board reviewed the Company’s relation-

ship with the auditor of the financial statements, G A Fulton 

of Ernst & Young. This review confirmed the present audit 

arrangements and noted no need to change them. 

The Audit Committee also reviewed the scope of services pro-

vided to Mighty River Power by G.A.Fulton and Ernst & Young.

Independent Advice: When the Board considers it appro-

priate to do so, Directors can request independent profes-

sional advice to assist them to carry out their duties. These 

advisory services can be commissioned at the Company’s 

expense. No such request for advice was made during the 

past financial year.

Securities Trading: The Company has adopted a formal policy 

and procedure governing trading by Directors and senior man-

agement in bonds and other securities issued by the company 

to the public. This policy is designed to ensure that any such 

trading is transparent, ethical and lawful and, in particular, 

that it does not involve the use of non-public information.

Directors and senior management must notify the 

Company of all securities held by them that have been issued 

to the public by the Company. They must also obtain approval 

before undertaking any trading in these securities.

Treasury policy: The Company has formal management struc-

tures, frameworks, controls and accountabilities for manag-

ing treasury risk. The Company’s risk appetite is conserva-

tive and is aimed at protecting cash flows and shareholder 

wealth by:

• reducing all financial risks relative to debt, interest rates 

and foreign exchange;

• effectively managing cash flows;

• ensuring the debt portfolio reflects the long-term nature of the 

Company’s assets and the Company’s risk appetite, and has 

a maturity profile that takes good account of duration risks;

• maintaining strong relationships with lenders;

• maintaining responsible liquidity levels;

• ensuring effective reporting and internal controls 

systems are in place; and

• ensuring that the company complies with the requirements 

of credit rating agencies. 

Charitable Donations: The Company provides sponsorship 

and support for events and organisations that it regards as 

benefiting the community. The Company also makes dona-

tions to registered charities and other organisations from 

time to time. These initiatives are managed according to an 

agreed policy and are reported to the Board. The Company 

has a policy that specifically prohibits making donations to 

political parties.

Responsibility Statement: The Board of Directors has respon-

sibility for ensuring the company has effective policies in 

place to manage its risks. The Board decides the level and 

nature of the risks which are acceptable to the Company. 

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the day 

to day running of the Company and management of normal 

business risk.

Standards of Conduct: These are governed by the Board Charter 

and the Code of Ethics.

Under the Board Charter, the Board is responsible for:

• approving appropriate corporate strategies, annual 

budgets, business plans and the Statement of Corporate 

Intent, and monitoring how they are implemented by man-

agement;

• ensuring the Company has adequate resources to meet 

its objectives;

• selecting, appointing and monitoring the performance of 

the Chief Executive;

• monitoring financial performance and the integrity of 

the reporting;

• setting specific limits of authority in terms of the commit-

ments they may make without prior Board approval;

• approving transactions relating to acquisitions, divest-

ments and capital expenditure that exceed those limits;

• setting the Company’s dividend policy;

• ensuring that effective audit, risk management and 

compliance systems are in place;

• monitoring the Company’s compliance with regulatory 

requirements and ethical standards;

• regularly reviewing senior management succession plan-

ning and development; and

• reporting in a timely and effective way to Shareholders. 

A copy of the full Board Charter is available at www.mightyriverpower.co.nz

The Code of Ethics sets out the ethical and behavioural 

standards expected of Mighty River Power directors, officers, 

employees and contractors, and points out that failure to meet 

these standards may lead to disciplinary action, which could 

include dismissal. Amongst the areas covered in the Code:

• the obligation for all involved to act honestly at all times 

and in accordance with the highest standards of integrity 

and fairness;

• the obligation for Directors to attend to the matters put 

before them and at all times to act in the best interests of 

the Company, as required by law;

• the need to avoid conflicts of interest, and to neither give 

nor receive anything that could reasonably be perceived as 

a bribe intended to influence a decision;

• the obligation to protect the privacy of the Company’s con-

fidential business information;

• the responsible use and care of the Company’s assets 

and property

• the need to comply with all relevant laws, regulations, rules, 

codes of practice and Company policies in the performance 

of duties; and

• the obligation to report illegal or unethical conduct.

A copy of the full Code of Ethics is available at www.mightyriverpower.co.nz

Statement of Corporate Intent: In accordance with its obliga-

tions under the State-Owned Enterprises Act, the Company 

publishes an annual Statement of Corporate Intent that com-

municates the goals and strategies of the Company and details 

its performance. This document also helps Mighty River Power 

to meet its disclosure communication obligations.

A copy of the Statement of Corporate Intent is available at 
www.mightyriverpower.co.nz
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Executive 
Management

Doug Heffernan, Chief Executive. Doug was appointed Chief Executive 

in December 1998. Previously, he was Chief Executive of Power New 

Zealand Limited, from 1991 to 1997, leading it through corporatisation, 

merger and stock exchange listing. He has also assisted governments on 

policy development, provided strategic advice to the electricity industry 

and performed a number of governance roles within the sector. His 

senior management responsibility has extended across all parts of the 

electricity value chain.

Neil Williams, General Manager External Affairs. Neil previously headed 

our trading area and has over 10 years experience in the New Zealand 

electricity industry across retailing, distribution and trading. His respon-

sibilities include identifying for the company and its stakeholders oppor-

tunities emerging from policy development. In his role he guides our 

strategic industry policy, relationships with central government, iwi 

and other stakeholders. He is also responsible for public relations and 

media communications.

William Meek, Enterprise Risk Strategist. William is responsible for 

overseeing the integrated risk positions of the company with a partic-

ular focus on electricity and risk tolerance parameters. This includes 

developing value–enhancing strategies within the company’s financial 

capability. He has 10 years experience in the New Zealand electric-

ity industry including electricity wholesale markets, price forecasting, 

strategy and risk management.

Tony Gray, Group Finance Manager. Tony joined Mighty River Power in 

September 1999 following previous roles at Tourism Holdings Limited 

and as Chief Financial Officer at TVNZ. He was closely involved in TVNZ’s 

business development in the 1990s including the investments in SKY 

Network Television, Clear Communications, Teamtalk and Asia Business 

News (now CNBC). He has held directorships in all of these companies. 

His background provides an extensive mix of experience in both the 

private and state-owned enterprise sectors.

David Reeve, General Manager Metrix. David has a broad range of expe-

rience in the electricity industry, including transmission and distribution, 

over a 20-year period. His roles have included maximising the efficient and 

commercial operation of the company’s hydro generating system on the 

Waikato River. David is responsible for extending the Metrix business with a 

focus on customers, research and development, new technologies, and lev-

eraging opportunities in a market where consolidation is continuing to occur.

Stuart Lush, General Manager Generation Development. Stuart is respon-

sible for the development of new generation opportunities with a focus 

on our strategic position in the use of sustainable and renewable energy 

resources. Stuart has extensive experience in the electricity and con-

struction industries, particularly in relation to the commercial realisa-

tion of development opportunities.

Tim Densem, General Manager Hydro/Thermal. Tim’s role is to ensure the 

hydro, cogeneration and methane recovery plants are delivering value to 

stakeholders. Tim joined Mighty River Power following senior managerial 

roles in New Zealand and Australia with responsibility for gas and elec-

tricity infrastructure businesses through merger and market deregulation.

Greg Raasch, General Manager Geothermal. Greg joined Mighty River 

in January 2004 after spending 30 years in geothermal exploration and 

development around the world. He previously was the Program Manager 

responsible for creating a Geothermal Division within the state-owned oil 

company in Chile. He was the Operations Manager for a 756MW generating 

facility in the Philippines and has developed geothermal and natural gas-

fired power plants in North America, Latin America and South East Asia.

John Foote, Group Operations Manager. John is responsible for group 

operations, including retail, metering, hydro/thermal generation and 

group services. He has over 20 years’ experience in general management 

roles in the electricity sector, and previously held the position of Chief 

Operations Manager with Power New Zealand Limited. Prior to joining 

the electricity industry, John was involved in the construction industry, 

which included significant international experience.

James Moulder, General Manager Trading. James’ role is to optimise the 

company’s generation portfolio within the wholesale market, consist-

ent with defined risk management policies. James is also responsible 

for the management of electricity sales to industrial and commercial 

customers. James joined Mighty River Power following experience in 

financial markets and strategic and financial consulting work in the 

Australian energy sector. He brings extensive business experience in 

managing risk, commodity trading and financial management, both in 

New Zealand and Australia.

Top row: Doug Heffernan, Neil Williams, Tony Gray, Stuart Lush, Greg Raasch

Bottom row: William Meek, David Reeve, Tim Densem, John Foote, James Moulder
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Our business is inextricably linked to the environment 

Our responsibilities are to our shareholders, fellow New 

Zealanders and to the communities where we work and who 

provide us with the license and the mandate to do what we do.

That’s why we place so much importance on building 

strong, open relationships based on sharing information 

and viewpoints with the people and communities in which 

we operate. We depend on their goodwill and trust to 

sustain our right to use resources and ultimately to sustain 

our business.

Regulatory licenses may give us a legal right to operate 

plant, but a community license to operate is vital if we are to 

continue to work successfully in partnership with people to 

supply communities and our country with electricity.

We believe a sustainable business approach is one that 

takes account of, and provides the best balance possible, 

for a range of different priorities: a sustained economy; a 

sustainable business; a sustained environment; and com-

munities that continue to thrive. 

For these reasons, we are committed to meeting the 

needs of the wider community as much as possible. Open days, 

our sponsorships and water releases are all about engag-

ing and working with different groups to build relationships, 

foster loyalty, and keep resources and communication lines 

as open and available as possible. 

The successful completion of our Waikato hydro resource 

applications (subject to a number of appeals) points to what 

is possible when people negotiate openly and in a spirit of 

mutual respect. 

That spirit of cohesion and mutual advantage also holds 

for our own culture. In the past year, we have done much to 

help bring people together and to make them feel valued 

and respected.

This Update will bring you up to speed with some of the 

initiatives we have underway to sustain community loyalty, 

social interaction with other stakeholders, and teamwork 

within our own organisation. 

Mighty River Power’s Economic Footprint

Our Direct Contribution: Our contribution to the community 

and economy goes beyond the generation and supply of elec-

tricity. We see our business as an important stakeholder, both 

in the communities we operate in directly, and in New Zealand 

as a whole. One way of describing the difference we make 

as a company is to identify our direct economic contribution, 

which can be measured in a number of ways:

• As an employer

• As a purchaser of contract and professional services

• As a contributor to local government through rates

• As a contributor to central government through taxation

• As a borrower of funds from financial institutions; and

• As a provider of sponsorship, donations and support to 

community initiatives and charities

Category Value

Staff $31.061 million

Service providers $31.169 million

Local government $1.434 million

Central government $55.748 million

Lenders $31.742 million

Community $3.483 million

Electricity and the New Zealand Economy: In addition to a 

direct cash input, Mighty River Power makes a significant 

indirect contribution to the New Zealand economy through its 

electricity generation activities. Our view is that electricity is 

an integral component of New Zealand’s economy. It does not 

matter where you turn – whether it is to the milking sheds 

of our rural heartland, or to the factories of our cities – it 

is difficult, if not impossible, to conceive of an aspect of the 

economy which does not rely in some manner on the provi-

sion of a reliable supply of electricity. 

An inescapable reality that we all face is that in order for 

the economy to grow we require a commensurate increase 

Sustainability Update
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The following table identifies the specific contributions Mighty 
River Power made in each of these categories over the past year:
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We believe 
a sustainable business approach 
is one that takes account of, and 

provides the best balance possible, 
for a range of different priorities: 

a sustained economy; 
a sustainable business; 

a sustained environment; 
and 

communities that continue 
to thrive. 
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in electricity generation. Regardless of how efficient new 

homes become in energy use, or how much less power per 

unit of production a new manufacturing plant may need, by 

definition, they all result in a demand for more electricity than 

was required before they were built. Put more simply, it is 

not possible to decouple the link between economic growth 

and the need for electricity. 

When we acknowledge the underlying importance of elec-

tricity to all parts of the economy, we can begin to appreciate 

the broader contributory role played by those businesses 

involved in electricity generation. On this basis, we believe 

that it is appropriate to identify the amount of electricity 

required to support a single unit of GDP. In the 30 June 2004 

financial year, New Zealand generated 38,800GWh of electric-

ity, and real GDP was approximately $118 billion. On average, 

therefore, 1GWh of electricity played a key role in supporting 

approximately $3 million of GDP.

When we identify the total amount of electricity Mighty 

River Power generated this year (5,355GWh), as a proportion 

of total power generated nationwide, and relate this to New 

Zealand’s GDP for the same period, we find that the electricity 

we produced played a vital part in underpinning $16 billion 

(13.5%) of New Zealand’s GDP. 

Sponsorships: Every year, Mighty River Power works with 

members of the community to assist with a myriad of events 

and fundraising for a number of projects. 

Sponsorships are a critical part of the way we reach out 

and positively affect the lives of thousands of New Zealanders.

This year, we thought it appropriate to profile some of 

the key sponsorships we participate in, and the differences 

they make for people in our communities.

Environment

Waikato Catchment Ecological Enhancement Trust: This Trust 

is an initiative that came out of the Waikato Hydro consents 

application process. It was formed following discussions and 

agreement between Mighty River Power and representatives 

from the Department of Conservation, Fish & Game NZ, Royal 

Forest and Bird Protection Society Incorporated, and the 

Advisory Committee for Regional Environment, to assess 

the future impacts of operations on the Waikato River and 

to enhance restoration projects. It makes use of the detailed 

information that has been gathered during our extensive 

resource consent process. Mighty River Power funded the 

establishment of the Waikato Ecological Enhancement Trust, 

however the Trust itself operates independently, selecting 

projects on the basis of their contribution to the river and 

the community.

National Wetland Trust: Mighty River Power is a significant 

supporter of this Trust which aims to raise the appreciation 

of wetlands and their values by all New Zealanders. Three of 

the country’s five internationally recognised wetlands are in 

the north Waikato. The Trust has made important progress 

and secured some of the funding needed to develop a National 

Wetland Centre at Rangiriri, north of Huntly.

Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust: We are proud to 

support the Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust. The Trust 

has been established to lead a project aimed at restoring 

the ecology of Maungatautari, a forested volcanic cone that 

rises above the Waikato basin. The Trust’s vision is to remove 

introduced pests and predators from the area and restore a 

healthy diversity of indigenous plants and animals.

Lower Waikato River Enhancement Society: We are a 

Foundation Member of this Society which focuses on restor-

ing native plant habitat along the banks of the lower Waikato 

River, at Ngaruawahia, Huntly, Rangiriri, Horahora and 

Meremere.

Festival of the Environment: The Waikato Festival of the 

Environment is an annual event, that offers a range of fun 

activities based around the environment. Once again, thou-

sands took part in the Festival. There were more than 40 

environmentally focused events, organised by local environ-

ment groups, community organisations and local schools. 

Part of our contribution was an open day at Karapiro Power 

Station, attended by more than 800 people. 

Sports and Recreation

New Zealand Rowing Association: This year we renewed our 

sponsor partnership with Rowing New Zealand for a further 

four years at the sport’s home base, Lake Karapiro. The part-

nership aims to promote excellence and has produced New 

Zealand World and Olympic champions at the 2004 Athens 

Olympic Games. The agreement sees us supporting the Rowing 

New Zealand High Performance Centre at the home of Rowing 

New Zealand, Lake Karapiro. We regard this partnership as 

a fantastic opportunity to contribute to one of New Zealand’s 

most successful sports and to help provide role models for 

the future. According to Rowing New Zealand Chief Executive 

Craig Ross, “the term of Mighty River Power’s commitment 

allows us to plan ahead to the 2008 Beijing Olympics with a 

high degree of confidence.”

Mercury Energy

Mercury Energy sponsors a range of community-based 

events and organisations throughout the year as part of its 

proactive programme to foster and strengthen wider com-

munity relationships. 

The most far-reaching of these is Mercury Energy’s 

involvement with Starship Foundation, which began in 2000.

Star Supporters Club: Launched in May 2004 by Lucy 

Lawless, this new Starship donation scheme enables custom-

ers to donate money on a monthly basis to Starship. Mercury 

Energy customers can donate as much as they want, from 

one dollar up, through their bills. The Club is already raising 

more than $9,000 a month.

The Club’s first goal is to raise $200,000 to purchase a 

new Mobile Image Intensifier, a key piece of technology that 

allows doctors to gain detailed X-ray images during surgery 

on children. The images provide surgeons with accurate 

guidance during operations such as spinal corrections, bone 

strengthening, hip reconstructions and other orthopaedic and 

general surgery.

The Star Supporters Club follows on from a highly suc-

cessful customer donation programme in 2002 that raised 

$200,000 for a new life-saving heart/lung bypass machine 

for Starship.

Decorate a Star Competition: For the third year, schools 

from Taupo north were invited to enter the Decorate a Star 

for Starship Competition. The stars decorated by the chil-

dren were used to brighten the Starship Children’s Hospital 

over Christmas. Judges Suzy Cato and acclaimed Niuean 

artist John Pule carefully looked at each of the thousands of 

stars sent in by primary school children. Decorate a Star for 

Starship has grown into one of the largest art competitions 

in New Zealand. 

Decorate a Classroom: This year Mercury Energy also ran 

a Decorate Your Classroom competition, with the winners 

having a sleepover in the Auckland Museum. Parawai 

School in Thames was selected, and in June, 21 of their stu-

dents aged eight to twelve spent a night amongst the ancient 

treasures of the museum.

Starlight Symphony: This annual concert was held on 

Valentine’s Day. This is the 12th year Mercury Energy has 

sponsored this event. The highlight once again was “The 

Mercury Energy Laser Light Show”.

Christmas events have always been an important Mercury 

sponsorship, and this year was no exception.

Christmas in the Park: In 2003, Mercury Energy marked 10 

years as sponsor of this much-anticipated event, once again 

attended by more than 100,000 Aucklanders.

Mercury Energy Christmas at the Lake: For the first time 

this year, Mercury Energy sponsored Christmas at the Lake 

in Hamilton. The inaugural event was a huge success, with 

organisers estimating crowds of up to 20,000.

Carols by Candlelight: These popular family events are held 

each year at local Auckland community parks in Balmoral, 

St Heliers, Waiheke Island, Three Kings and Onehunga. Once 

again this year, each event drew a crowd of between 1,000 

and 3,000 people.

Mercury Energy also participated in two other important 

sponsorships throughout the year.
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Lighting Landmarks: Mercury Energy sponsors the lighting 

of prominent Auckland landmarks, including the Auckland 

Museum, Tamaki Cliffs, the Savage Memorial at Bastion 

Point and the One Tree Hill obelisk. Also this year, we lit the 

Museum and the Sky Tower pink to support Breast Cancer 

Awareness.

Living Treasures Day: This year, Mercury Energy joined 

forces with Auckland Museum and the Starship Foundation 

to present the first Living Treasures Day at the Auckland 

Museum. People were invited to help decorate the Museum’s 

Christmas tree and at the same time to bring a present for 

children from Starship. Retailers in Parnell also helped out 

hugely, spreading the word and collecting presents for the 

Starship children.

Like any community-based business, we are focused on 

the needs of people. Over the next year, Mercury Energy will 

look to add to its sponsorships with new opportunities in the 

Bay of Plenty, Waikato and Poverty Bay.

Arts

Mighty River Power Photographic Competition: This year, 

we held the second Mighty River Power Photographic 

Competition, offering secondary and tertiary students and 

non-professional photographers the opportunity to win 

a share of $12,500 of prizes. Entrants could photograph 

whatever they liked as long as it explored an aspect of the 

Waikato/Taupo region or its people and fell within one of 

the four themes: landscape; documentary; portraiture; and 

contemporary art. 

Taupo Arts Festival: We continued our support of the arts 

in the Taupo area with Crossings, an exhibition that marked 

the beginning of the ten day Taupo Arts Festival. The Festival, 

which is held bi-annually, brings together performers and 

artists and is a treasured part of the Taupo arts scene. 

Crossings itself explored the influence of culture and envi-

ronment on the identity of our country. It featured artists 

such as Fiona Clark, Robert McLeod, Te Waru Rewiri, Lily 

Laita and Jeff Thompson.

Economic

B2H – Business to Hamilton: Mighty River Power is a founder 

member of B2H. The organisation, which is made up of busi-

ness leaders and the Hamilton City Council, aims to develop 

business in the region. 

B2H in turn provides funding for Innovation Waikato, a 

company established to develop a new science and technol-

ogy centre at the Waikato Innovation Park, which is situated 

between the University of Waikato and the Ruakura sites of 

AgResearch and Hort Research. Mighty River Power rec-

ognises this as a key economic initiative for the region and 

has provided Innovation Waikato with free office space and 

access to all of its staff facilities.

Community

Books in Homes: Books in Homes was started by the New 

Zealand author Alan Duff to encourage primary school chil-

dren to read. We work with the Books in Homes programme 

in the Waikato, providing books for children in three schools 

– Waipa School, Richmond Primary School and Mangakino 

Area School.

Project K: Started by mountaineer and adventurer Graeme 

Dingle, Project K works with adolescents helping them to 

develop a greater sense of purpose and self-confidence over 

a two year period. Our support allows students from four 

Waikato secondary schools – Putararu, Tokoroa, Forrest View 

and Mangakino High Schools – to undertake a three week 

outdoors intensive programme known as the “Wilderness 

Experience” in the South Waikato programme.

Other: We continued to provide assistance to a range of 

worthy causes, charities and groups. Over the past year, 

these have included Auckland City Mission, The Gif ted 

Kids Programme, Brain Injury Trust, Salvation Army and 

Barnados.

Open Days: In March, as part of the Putaruru Water Festival 

and the Festival of the Environment, more than 800 people 

took advantage of the opportunity to visit the Karapiro Power 

Station. At the open day, visitors were given tours of the site 
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and heard the inside story on how a hydro-electricity dam 

actually works. They were also able to see an educational 

display of young eels.

But the highlight for many was watching competitors in 

the Festival of the Environment’s Great E-scape, a two-day 

adventure race from Taupo to Hamilton, as they abseiled off 

the power station. Five members of the public also won the 

opportunity to abseil down the hydro dam. 

Water Releases: One of the great benefits of the Waikato 

hydro system is that it of fers a range of water-based 

recreational opportunities. Year round, thousands of New 

Zealanders and international visitors take advantage of the 

diversity of opportunities. We recognise that we have an 

important part to play in maintaining the scenic qualities 

of the river and in facilitating water based recreational 

activities on the river and the lakes. We schedule daily 

releases of water down the spectacular Aratiatia Rapids 

and help a wide variety of organisations by meeting their 

requests for specific lake levels or water flows, when 

conditions permit.

Thir ty dif ferent organisations applied for water 

releases during the year. A total of 33 applications were 

approved, with 11 declined. Eight were declined because 

of high inflow levels, two because they didn’t provide enough 

time (i.e. inside the required two week timeframe) and 

one because of low storage levels in Taupo. (see table on 

page 51)

Our People: The maintenance of our external sense of com-

munity requires that we foster a powerful sense of support 

for each other within the company. Business success is criti-

cally impacted by relationships and responsibilities we have 

to each other.

In the past year, the move to integrate the component 

businesses has been complemented by a reconfiguration 

of the organisation to facilitate a wider understanding of 

group goals, achieve better team integration and reinforce 

cross functional processes. The instigation of group wide 

policies and management overviews has brought with it a 

shift in focus from the business unit to the company as a 

whole and its place and responsibilities within the community. 

A major project has been established to specifically address 

some issues and to help translate principles into actions 

that are visible and allow staff to positively contribute to 

company goals.

Clearly structure and projects alone will not maximise 

organisational capability. Accordingly there have been a 

number of initiatives put in place to ensure that individual 

and group learning processes are significantly strength-

ened. The growth of the company, particularly in the geo-

thermal area, has required us to look beyond New Zealand 

for the highly skilled individuals needed to ensure that a 

leading geothermal development and operating capability is 

achieved within a short timeframe. A training and devel-

opment initiative is being put in place to ensure that the 

technical and management learning is embedded and that 

over time the organisation grows the capability to sustain 

future needs. 

A key part of our organisational capability development 

is to ensure that people management is framed within a 

work-life balance context. Part of the balance has been the 

implementation of an additional special leave initiative which 

allows individuals to manage a variety of personal issues that 

are mostly single day in nature. These are able to be taken 

on a short notice basis. In addition we launched a Group Life 

Insurance and Income Protection Insurance schemes at no 

cost to staff. These schemes recognise the significant and 

growing contribution that our people have made towards 

company performance.

Organisation Approved Declined Reason for Decline

ASR Consultants 2  

Auckland University Canoe Club  1 High inflows

Ballistics 1  

Boathouse 8’s  1 Low lake level storage

BOP Tournament Waterskiers Association 1  

Environment Waikato 1  

Environment Waikato (Asset Management Group)  1 High inflows

Fish & Game 2  

Hamilton City Council  1 High inflows

Hamilton Rowing Club 1  

Huka Falls Kayak Club 1  

Huka Jet 1  

Ironman NZ  1 High inflows

Karapiro Rowing Inc 7  

Lake Whakamaru Christian Youth Camp  1 High inflows

Manukau Canoe Club 2  

Massey University Alpine Club 1  

Nga Kaihoe o Aotearoa 1  

NIWA  2 Less than required notice

North Waikato Tourism 1  

NZ Waterski Racing Association 1  

Police National Dive Squad 2  

Rapid Sensations Taupo Kayak School 1 1 High inflows

Rapids Jet  1 High inflows

Taupo Bungy 1  

Turangawaewae Regatta Committee 1  

Waikato Tournament Waterski Association 3  

Waikato University  1 High inflows

Waipa District 1  

Whitewater Slalom NZ 1  

Grand Total 33 11 

Recreational Release Data  
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Financial and Commercial Performance Targets

Our objective is to increase shareholder value at a rate that is similar to the increases in market value achieved by com-

parable private sector companies. Our Statement of Corporate Intent sets out our financial and non-financial performance 

targets. Our achievements against targets for the 2004 financial year were as follows:

Financial Performance Targets

Return on average Shareholders’ Equity (%)

Total Equity/Total Assets (%)

Net Debt/Net Debt plus Equity (%)

Free Funds from Operations/Interest Expense (times)

Non-Financial Performance Targets

Safety – Frequency (lost time accidents
per 100,000 hours of time worked) 

Safety – Severity (hours lost per 1,000 hours worked)

Environmental performance (%)

Customer switching to Industry standards (%) – based
on MARIA Schedule 12 requirements that measure the
percentage of switch notifications achieved within 48 hours 

Customer contacts per year

Plant availability (%) – percentage of time
hydro generation plant available for use

Forced Outage Rate (%) – percentage of time hydro
generation plant unavailable due to unplanned outages

2004 Actual

 11.4

 58.6

 32.4

 6.8

 0.60

 0.17

 100

 100

 2.4

95.5

 1.2

2004 Target

 8.6

 56.6

 36.7

 4.3

 <1.25

 <0.25

 100

 100

 <2.5

 92%

<2.0

Status

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved
No enforcements by regulatory
authorities arising from breach of
environmental standards and controls

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are pleased to present Mighty River Power Limited’s Annual Report and financial statements for the year 

ending 30 June 2004.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements comply with generally accepted accounting 

practices and represent a true and fair view of Mighty River Power Limited’s financial position as at 30 June 2004, and of 

the financial performance and cash flows for the current financial year.

The Directors consider that the Company and Group financial statements have been prepared using appropriate 

accounting policies, that these have been consistently applied and are supported by reasonable judgments and estimates, 

and that all relevant financial reporting and accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept which allow for the determination of the compa-

ny’s financial position with reasonable accuracy, and that the financial statements themselves comply with the Financial 

Reporting Act 1993 and the Companies Act 1993.

The Directors consider that they have taken adequate steps to safeguard the Company’s assets and to prevent and 

where necessary detect fraud and any other irregularities. 

After consultation with the Company’s shareholders, the Directors resolved on 30 June 2004 to pay an extraordinary 

dividend, which was paid on 23 July 2004. 

The Audit Office is required to be the Company’s auditor, and has appointed Mr G.A.Fulton of Ernst & Young to under-

take the audit on its behalf. 

Audit Report

To the readers of Mighty River Power Limited and Group’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004.

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Mighty River Power Limited (the Company) and Group. The Auditor-General has 

appointed me, Gordon Fulton, using the staff and resources of Ernst & Young, to carry out the audit of the financial state-

ments of the Company and Group, on his behalf, for the year ended 30 June 2004.

Unqualified Opinion

In our opinion:

The financial statements of the Company and Group on pages 58 to 84:

• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

• give a true and fair view of:

• the Company and Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2004; and 

• the results of operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

• based on our examination the Company and Group kept proper accounting records.

The audit was completed on 25 August 2004, and is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis of the opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditor, and explain our independence.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the New Zealand 

Auditing Standards.

We planned and performed our audit to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary in order 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements did not have material misstatements, whether caused by 

fraud or error.

Material mis-statements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a reader’s overall 

understanding of the financial statements. If we had found material mis-statements that were not corrected, we would 

have referred to them in the opinion.

Our audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented in the financial statements. We assessed 

the results of those procedures in forming our opinion.

Audit procedures generally include:

• determining whether significant financial and management controls are working and can be relied on to produce com-

plete and accurate data;

• verifying samples of transactions and account balances;

• performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported data;

• reviewing significant estimates and judgements made by the Board of Directors;
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• confirming year-end balances;

• determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently applied; and 

• determining whether all financial statement disclosures are adequate.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements.

We have evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We obtained 

all the information and explanations we required to support the opinion above.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Auditor

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

practice in New Zealand. Those financial statements must give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company 

and Group as at 30 June 2004. They must also give a true and fair view of the results of operations and cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. The Board of Directors responsibilities arise from the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 and 

Financial Reporting Act 1993.

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and reporting that opinion to 

you. This responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 19(1) of the State-Owned Enterprises 

Act 1986.

Independence

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which incorporate the 

independence requirements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand. Other than the audit, we have no 

relationship with or interests in the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Gordon Fulton

Ernst & Young

On behalf of the Auditor-General, Auckland, New Zealand

Audit Report (continued) Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2004

58 Statement of Financial Performance

59 Statement of Movements in Equity

60 Statement of Financial Position

62 Statement of Cash Flows

63 Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Statement of Financial Performance For the year ended 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
 note $000 $000 $000 $000

Sales  774,654 798,286 721,880 710,383

Less line and metering charges  (185,844) (162,270) (185,844) (162,270)

Interest income  2,341 2,784 13,880 12,869

Other revenue  8,097 7,446 9,960 5,819

Total Operating Revenue  2 599,248 646,246 559,876 566,801

Operating surplus before interest and non-recurring items 3 199,551 119,474 211,174 88,185

Interest income  2,341 2,784 13,880 12,869

Interest expense  (31,742) (29,867) (31,818) (29,874)

Non-recurring items 4 (14,705) 34,217 (13,996) 12,438

Surplus Before Taxation  155,445 126,608 179,240 83,618

Taxation expense 5 (55,748) (13,077) (63,810) (5,879)

Surplus After Taxation  99,697 113,531 115,430 77,739

Share of associate net surplus  131 0 0 0

Net Surplus After Taxation 6 99,828 113,531 115,430 77,739

Statement of Movements in Equity For the year ended 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
 note $000 $000 $000 $000

Equity at Beginning of the Year  861,696 759,965 871,526 805,587

Net surplus after taxation  6 99,828 113,531 115,430 77,739

Total Recognised Revenues and Expenses for the Year  99,828 113,531 115,430 77,739

Distributions to owners:

Final dividend paid for 2002  0 (11,800) 0 (11,800)

Special dividend  (75,000) 0 (75,000) 0

Equity at End of the Year  886,524 861,696 911,956 871,526

The notes set out on pages 63 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements. The notes set out on pages 63 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
 note $000 $000 $000 $000

Equity

Share capital 8 377,561 377,561 377,561 377,561

Reserves 9 508,963 484,135 534,395 493,965

  886,524 861,696 911,956 871,526

Non-current Liabilities

Energy contracts  1,204 56,002 1,204 56,002

Loans 10 329,821 434,771 329,821 434,771

  331,025 490,773 331,025 490,773

Current Liabilities

Payables and accruals 11 91,863 79,197 85,494 69,372

Provision for dividend  75,000 0 75,000 0

Provisions 12 4,254 3,322 4,254 3,322

Deferred taxation 13 24,114 22,793 13,288 11,298

Provision for taxation   2,032 0 8,936 0

Energy contracts - current portion  0 10,064 0 10,064

Loans - current portion 10 98,494 36,000 98,494 36,000

  295,757 151,376 285,466 130,056

Total Equity and Liabilities  1,513,306 1,503,845 1,528,447 1,492,355

Statement of Financial Position (continued) As at 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
 note $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 14 1,369,319 1,375,053 1,226,538 1,221,927

Investment in subsidiaries 15 0 0 37,959 37,959

Investment in associate 17 2,352 6,916 1,971 6,666

Other non-current assets 18 15,494 14,438 12,617 11,261

  1,387,165 1,396,407 1,279,085 1,277,813

Current Assets

Cash  3,457 4,882 3,382 4,170

Investment in associates 17 1,985 0 1,985 0

Receivables and prepayments 19 116,649 95,091 239,945 195,104

Inventories 20 4,050 3,016 4,050 3,016

Taxation receivable  0 4,449 0 12,252

  126,141 107,438 249,362 214,542

Total Assets  1,513,306 1,503,845 1,528,447 1,492,355

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, who authorised the issue of the financial statements on 25 August 2004.

Rob Challinor

Chairman

25 August 2004

Carole Durbin

Deputy Chair

25 August 2004

The notes set out on pages 63 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements. The notes set out on pages 63 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.

60 Mighty River Power Limited Annual Report 2004 61Mighty River Power Limited Annual Report 2004



Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
 note $000 $000 $000 $000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash was provided from (applied to):

Receipts from customers  574,572 654,391 525,158 554,793

Interest received  1,426 2,416 1,398 2,298

Payments to suppliers and employees  (408,544) (531,193) (356,543) (511,040)

Interest paid  (30,966) (29,983) (19,399) (19,755)

Taxation paid  (47,500) (13,904) (47,500) (14,469)

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 21 88,988 81,727 103,114 11,827

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash was provided from (applied to):

Sale of property, plant and equipment  436 850 436 850

Proceeds from investments  2,710 453 2,710 453

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (47,120) (25,822) (42,002) (17,664)

Purchase of other non-current assets  (3,983) (13,056) (3,983) (10,056)

Purchase of associate  0 (250) 0 0

Purchase of subsidiary and joint venture  0 9,293 0 0

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities  (47,957) (28,532) (42,839) (26,417)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash was provided from (applied to):

Loan advances  0 8,712 0 57,551

Loans repaid 10 (42,456) 0 (42,456) 0

Loans of purchased subsidiary  0 (48,500) 0 0

Loans to subsidiaries  0 0 (18,607) (27,579)

Dividends paid  0 (11,800) 0 (11,800)

Net Cash (Outflow) Inflow from Financing Activities  (42,456) (51,588) (61,063) 18,172

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash Held  (1,425) 1,607 (788) 3,582

Cash Balance at Beginning of the Year  4,882 3,275 4,170 588

Cash Balance at End of the Year  3,457 4,882 3,382 4,170

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2004

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity: Mighty River Power Limited is a company 

registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is a reporting 

entity for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. The 

financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the Companies Act 1993 

and comprise the following: significant accounting policies, 

statements of financial performance, movements in equity, 

financial position and cash flows, as well as the notes to 

these statements.

The Parent Company’s financial statements are for Mighty 

River Power Limited (the “Company”) and the consolidated 

financial statements are for Mighty River Power Limited Group 

(the “Group”). The consolidated financial statements comprise 

the Company, its subsidiaries, associates and interests in 

joint ventures.

Constitution, Ownership and Activities: Mighty River Power 

Limited is wholly owned by Her Majesty the Queen in Right 

of New Zealand (the Crown). Consequently, the Company is 

bound by the requirements of the State-Owned Enterprises 

Act 1986.

The liabilities of the Company are not guaranteed in any 

way by the Crown. 

The Group’s principal activities are the generation, trading 

and retailing of energy.

On the acquisition of assets and liabilities from ECNZ, the 

Company undertook a fair value exercise as at 1 April 1999. 

As a result, the fair value of assets and liabilities at 1 April 

1999 is deemed to be their historical cost.

Measurement Base: The financial statements are prepared on 

the basis of historical cost with the exception of certain items for 

which specific accounting policies are identified, as noted below.

Specific Accounting Policies: The following specific account-

ing policies that materially affect the measurement of finan-

cial performance, financial position and cash flows have 

been applied.

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries: Subsidiaries are those entities in which the 

Group holds a controlling interest either directly, indirectly 

or beneficially in the equity. Subsidiaries are consolidated 

under the purchase method on a line-by-line basis. All mate-

rial inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised 

surpluses and deficits arising from transactions between 

Group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

Associates: Associates are those entities in which the Company 

holds an equity interest and over which the Company has the 

capacity to significantly affect but not unilaterally determine 

the operating and/or financial policy decisions. Associates are 

reflected in the consolidated financial statements on an equity 

accounting basis which recognises the Group’s share of retained 

surpluses or deficits in the consolidated statement of finan-

cial performance and its share of post acquisition increases 

or decreases in net assets in the consolidated statement of 

financial position.

Joint Ventures: Joint ventures are joint arrangements with 

other parties in which the Company has several liability in 

respect of costs and liabilities, and shares in any result-

ing output. The Company’s share of the assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses of joint ventures is incorporated into 

the Company and Group financial statements on a line-by-

line basis.

Investments: Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost.

Short-term investments comprise investments that 

mature or are otherwise realisable within not more than 

twelve months from the date of purchase and are stated at 

cost, less unamortised premium or discount.

Acquisition or Disposal during the Year: Where an entity 

becomes or ceases to be a Group entity during the year, the 

results of that entity are included in the net surplus of the 

Group from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase 

consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets 

acquired at the date of acquisition of an equity interest. Goodwill 

is recognised as an asset and separately disclosed. Goodwill 

is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of expected 

benefits.

Discount on acquisition of businesses is accounted for by 

reducing the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired.

Operating Revenue: Operating revenue recognised in the 

statement of financial performance includes the amounts 

received and receivable for energy and related energy services 

supplied to customers in the ordinary course of business.The notes set out on pages 63 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Operating revenue is stated exclusive of:

• distribution costs paid to lines companies as collected 

from customers, and

• goods and services tax collected from customers.

Operating revenue includes the value of units assessed 

as being recorded on meters as at balance date, but for which 

invoices have not yet been rendered.

Receivables: Receivables are stated at their estimated real-

isable value, after providing for debts where collection is 

doubtful. Bad debts are expensed during the period in which 

they are identified.

Taxation: The taxation expense charged to the statement 

of financial performance includes both the current year’s 

provision and the income tax effect of timing differences 

calculated using the liability method.

Tax effect accounting is applied on a comprehensive basis 

to all timing differences. A debit balance in the deferred taxa-

tion account arising from timing differences or income tax 

benefits from income tax losses, is only recognised if there 

is virtual certainty of realisation.

Foreign Currencies: Foreign currency assets and liabilities are 

translated at exchange rates ruling at balance date. Exchange 

differences arising on translation are taken to the statement 

of financial performance. Hedged foreign currency assets and 

liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange determined 

by the underlying hedge contracts.

Foreign currency transactions are translated at 

the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction 

except where hedging contracts are taken out to cover 

short-term forward currency commitments, in which case 

the transaction is translated at the forward rate specified in 

those contracts.

The assets and liabilities of independent foreign opera-

tions are translated at the exchange rates ruling at balance 

date. Revenue and expense items are translated at the spot 

rate at the transaction date or a rate approximating that 

rate. Exchange differences are taken to the foreign currency 

translation reserve.

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts which 

are not designated as hedges are valued at the forward rate of 

exchange at balance date and the resulting surpluses and defi-

cits are recognised in the statement of financial performance.

Debt: Debt as at 1 April 1999 was stated at fair value. All 

subsequent debt is stated at face value. Bank borrowing 

costs such as origination, commitment and transaction fees 

are expensed as incurred.

The Company acquired a portfolio of debt from ECNZ on 1 

April 1999 with various maturities, interest rates and curren-

cies. Pursuant to a fair value assessment, the interest rates 

applying to this debt portfolio were marked-to-market at 1 

April 1999. The resulting provision is being amortised on the 

basis of the difference between market yield at 1 April 1999 

and yield-to-maturity over the remaining term of the debt.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Owned Assets: The value of property, plant and equipment 

acquired on 1 April 1999 was adjusted to fair value. This value 

is deemed to be historical cost.

Freehold land and buildings disclosed in the notes to the 

financial statements at valuation is determined by an inde-

pendent valuer. The basis of valuation is economic value less 

the estimated costs of disposal, on an existing use basis. Any 

surplus on revaluation of a class of property, plant and equip-

ment is transferred directly to the asset revaluation reserve 

unless it offsets a previous decrease in value recognised in 

the statement of financial performance, in which case it is 

recognised in the statement of financial performance. A deficit 

on revaluation of a class of property, plant and equipment is 

recognised in the statement of financial performance in the 

period it arises where it exceeds any surplus previously trans-

ferred to the asset revaluation reserve. Additions to property, 

plant and equipment stated at valuation subsequent to the 

most recent valuation are recorded at cost. Office land and 

buildings are revalued to net market value tri-annually.

All other items of property, plant and equipment are 

recorded at cost.

The cost of property, plant and equipment purchased 

comprises the consideration given to acquire the assets 

plus other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing 

the assets to the location and condition necessary for their 

intended service.

The cost of property, plant and equipment constructed by 

the Group, including capital work in progress, includes the cost 

Notes to the Financial Statements (c0ntinued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

of all materials used in construction, direct labour specifically 

associated and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 

overheads. Financing costs attributable to a project are capi-

talised at the Group’s specific project finance interest rate, 

where these meet certain time and monetary materiality limits. 

Costs cease to be capitalised as soon as an asset is ready 

for productive use.

Where appropriate, the cost of property, plant and equip-

ment includes site preparation costs, installation costs, unre-

covered operating costs incurred during planned commis-

sioning and the cost of obtaining resource consents.

Provision is made for any permanent impairment in the 

value of property, plant and equipment.

Where property, plant and equipment is disposed of, the 

surplus or deficit recognised in the statement of financial 

performance is calculated as the difference between the 

sale price and the carrying value of the property, plant and 

equipment.

Leased Assets: The Group leases certain property, plant 

and equipment.

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all 

the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified 

as finance leases and are capitalised. The asset and corre-

sponding liability are recorded at the inception of the lease 

at the fair value of the leased asset, at amounts equivalent 

to the discounted present value of minimum lease payments, 

including residual values.

Finance charges are apportioned over the terms of the 

respective leases.

The cost of improvements to leasehold property are capi-

talised and amortised over the estimated useful life of the 

improvements, or over the unexpired portion of the lease, 

whichever is shorter.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter 

of their estimated useful lives or the lease term.

Operating lease payments are representative of the 

pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and accord-

ingly are charged to the statement of financial performance 

in the periods in which they are incurred.

Depreciation: Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis 

on all property, plant and equipment other than freehold 

land and capital work in progress, so as to write down the 

assets to their estimated residual value over their expected 

useful lives. 

The annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Freehold buildings 1 - 2 %

Generation plant:

– Hydro 2%

– Geothermal 5 - 7%

– Co-generation 7%

– Landfill 10%

Meters 4 - 10%

Computer hardware and software 20 - 33%

Other plant and equipment 10 - 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Distinction between Capital and Revenue Expenditure: Capital 

expenditure is defined as all expenditure on the purchase or 

creation of a new asset, and any expenditure that results in 

a significant improvement to the original functionality of an 

existing asset.

Revenue expenditure is defined as expenditure that 

restores an asset to its original operating capability and 

all expenditure incurred in maintaining and operating the 

business.

Insurance: The Group’s property, plant and equipment is 

predominantly concentrated at power station locations which 

have the potential to sustain major losses through damage 

to plant and resultant consequential costs.

To minimise the financial impact of such exposures, the 

major portion of the assessed risk is transferred to insurance 

companies by taking out insurance policies with appropri-

ate counter parties. Any uninsured loss is expensed to the 

statement of financial performance in the year in which the 

loss is incurred.

Rehabilitation Costs: Estimations are made for the expected 

cost of environmental rehabilitation of commercial sites that 

require some level of reinstatement resulting from present 

operations. Any liability is recognised when exposure is identi-

fied and rehabilitation costs can be reasonably estimated.

Resource Consents: Costs incurred in obtaining a resource 

consent are capitalised and recognised as a non-current 
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asset where they give rise to future economic benefit. These 

costs are amortised over the life of the consent on a straight-

line basis.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net 

realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average 

basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 

inventories and bringing them to their existing condition and 

location.

Employee Entitlements: A liability for annual leave is accrued 

and recognised in the statement of financial position. The 

liability is stated at the estimated value of future cash outflows 

resulting from employee services provided up to balance date.

Financial Instruments

Treasury: The Group has various financial instruments with off-

balance sheet risk for the purpose of reducing its exposure to 

fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. 

For interest rate swap agreements, the differential to be 

paid or received is accrued and is recognised as a component 

of interest expense or interest revenue over the life of the 

swap agreement.

Premiums paid on interest rate and currency options and 

the net settlement on maturity of forward rate agreements, 

futures and options are amortised over the life of the underly-

ing asset or liability protected by the instrument.

Financial instruments entered into with no corresponding 

underlying position are accounted for on a mark-to-market 

basis and surpluses and deficits are taken to the statement 

of financial performance as they accrue.

Energy Contracts: The Group has entered into a number of 

contracts to manage its exposure to price fluctuations on 

the electricity spot market. These contracts are in the form 

of power supply agreements, contracts for difference, over-

the-counter swaps and exchange traded futures. They are not 

undertaken for speculative purposes. These energy contracts 

establish the price at which future specified quantities of 

electricity are purchased, sold or otherwise exchanged.

Surpluses and deficits on energy contracts are recognised 

in the statement of financial performance in the period incurred.

Pursuant to the fair value assessment of assets and 

liabilities acquired, a portfolio of energy contracts existing 

at 1 April 1999 was marked-to-market using an expected 

price path for future wholesale electricity prices determined 

by independent experts. The resulting net present values of 

unrealised revenues and expenses associated with these 

contracts have been recognised in the financial statements 

at balance date and the provisions are amortised over the 

remaining terms of individual contracts based on the expected 

price path.

Statement of Cash Flows: The following are the definitions of 

the terms used in the statement of cash flows.

• Cash includes cash on hand and bank current accounts, 

net of bank overdrafts.

• Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisi-

tion, holding and disposal of property, plant and equipment 

and of investments. Investments can include securities not 

falling within the definition of cash.

• Financing activities are those activities that result in changes 

in the size and composition of the equity structure of the 

Group. This includes both equity and debt not falling within 

the definition of cash. Dividends paid in relation to equity 

structure are included in financing activities.

• Operating activities include all transactions and other events 

that are not investing or financing activities.

The statement of cash flows includes net cash flows 

from loan advances as the rollover of loans and deposits is 

covered by an arranged finance facility.

Comparatives: Prior year comparatives have been restated 

to conform with current year presentation.

Changes in Accounting Policies: There have been no changes 

in accounting policies during the period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (c0ntinued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

2. Operating Revenue

All operating revenue was derived from continuing activities.

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

3. Operating Surplus Before Interest and Non-recurring Items

After charging (crediting):

Amortisation of energy contracts  (9,225) (15,610) (9,225) (15,610)

Net foreign currency exchange losses (gains)  4 (105) (38) 186

Net surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (175) (90) (175) (90)

Bad debts written off  1,838 2,906 1,838 2,906

Change in provision for doubtful debts  (545) (571) (50) (571)

Depreciation:

- Buildings  5,254 5,138 4,444 4,442

- Generation plant  37,778 35,763 23,998 23,794

- Meters  3,295 3,078 3,295 3,078

- Computer hardware and software  6,232 7,338 6,196 7,338

- Other plant and equipment   1,859 2,188 1,741 2,090

- Motor vehicles  218 191 208 191

Rental and operating lease costs  1,606 1,427 1,606 1,427

Directors’ fees  305 294 305 294

Donations  57 55 57 55

Fees paid to auditors for:

- Auditing the financial statements  161 157 117 119

- Other  22 0 20 0

Amortisation of goodwill  0 469 0 0

Amortisation of other non-current assets  1,775 1,347 1,475 1,272

In addition, fees paid to auditors of $56,000 have been capitalised as a non-current asset in relation to the Bonds issued 

in May 2003 and August 2003 (refer note 18).
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 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

4. Non-recurring Items

Exit from Contracts for Differences  (14,098) 0 (14,098) 0

Exit from Southdown Power Sale Agreement  0 43,153 0 12,153

Write-off of Southdown goodwill  0 (8,243) 0 0

Revaluation of office land and buildings  600 0 600 0

Other  (1,207) (693) (498) 285

  (14,705) 34,217 (13,996) 12,438

Exit from Contracts for Differences 

On 28 June 2004 the Group exited from two Contracts for Differences. The amount of $14,098,000 relates to the net 

loss from exiting these arrangements, including a termination payment and reversal of a provision for an onerous 

energy contract.

Exit from Southdown Power Sale Agreement 

On 28 November 2002 the Group exited from the Southdown Power Sale Agreement. The amount of $43,153,000 relates 

to the net gain from exiting this arrangement, including a termination payment and reversal of a provision for an onerous 

energy contract.

5. Taxation Expense

Surplus before taxation  155,445 126,608 179,240 83,618

Taxation at 33 cents  51,297 41,781 59,149 27,594

Taxation effect of permanent differences:

Release from Southdown energy contract  0 (24,470) 0 (24,470)

Amortisation of energy contracts  0 (1,486) 0 (1,486)

Other permanent differences  4,395 (2,324) 4,299 4,834

Prior year adjustments  56 (424) 362 (593)

Taxation Expense  55,748 13,077 63,810 5,879

Analysis of Taxation Expense

Current taxation  54,427 9,623 61,820 2,454

Deferred taxation  1,321 3,454 1,990 3,425

  55,748 13,077 63,810 5,879

6. Net Surplus After Taxation

All net surplus after taxation was derived from continuing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

  parent
    2004 2003
    $000 $000

7. Imputation Credit Account

Balance at beginning of the year    29,793 21,545

Imputation credits attached to dividends received during the year    0 6

Imputation credits attached to dividends paid during the year    0 (5,812)

Income tax payments during the year    47,500 14,054

Balance at end of the year    77,293 29,793

At balance date the imputation credits available to the shareholder were:

Through direct shareholding in the Company    67,469 29,737

Through indirect interests in subsidiaries    9,824 56

    77,293 29,793

8. Share Capital

The share capital is represented by 377,561,000 (2003: 377,561,000) ordinary shares issued and fully paid. 

All shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and surplus on winding up.

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

9. Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at beginning and end of the year  244,953 244,953 342,204 342,204

Retained Surplus

Balance at beginning of the year  239,182 137,451 151,761 85,822

Net surplus after taxation  99,828 113,531 115,430 77,739

Distributions to owners  (75,000) (11,800) (75,000) (11,800)

Balance at end of the year  264,010 239,182 192,191 151,761

  508,963 484,135 534,395 493,965

The distribution to owners was approved by the Board on 30 June 2004 and paid as a special dividend on 23 July 2004.

Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004
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 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

10. Loans

Bank loans (unsecured)  54,000 126,000 54,000 126,000

Commercial paper (unsecured)  44,494 128,771 44,494 128,771

Fixed Rate Bonds (unsecured)  313,821 200,000 313,821 200,000

ECNZ Residual loans (unsecured)  16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000

  428,315 470,771 428,315 470,771

Repayable as follows: Interest rate:

Within one year 6.0% to 6.2% 98,494 36,000 98,494 36,000

One to two years  0 128,771 0 128,771

Two to five years 8.0% 16,000 90,000 16,000 90,000

Later than five years 6.7% to 7.0% 313,821 216,000 313,821 216,000

Total  428,315 470,771 428,315 470,771

Less current portion  98,494 36,000 98,494 36,000

Total term loans  329,821 434,771 329,821 434,771

The unsecured bank loans represent amounts drawn down at balance date on $225 million of revolving advance facilities 

of which $75 million matures in October 2004 and $150 million matures in November 2007. These facilities carry floating 

interest rates which, at balance date, were 6.1%.

The unsecured commercial paper provides liquidity support by a cash advances and standby facility made available by 

five banks of which four are syndicated. The cash advances and standby facility expires in March 2007. It is the Company’s 

intention to continually re-new this facility for the foreseeable future.

The unsecured and unsubordinated Fixed Rate Bonds represent subscriptions of $200 million dated 9 May 2003 and 

$114 million dated 27 August 2003. The Bonds dated 9 May 2003 carry a fixed interest rate of 7.01% for the first five years 

and have a maturity date of 15 May 2013, unless the Company exercises its early repayment option to redeem the Bonds 

on 15 May 2008. The Bonds dated 27 August 2003 carry a fixed interest rate of 6.73% for the first three years and have a 

maturity date of 15 September 2011, unless the Company exercises its early repayment option to redeem the Bonds on 15 

September 2006.

The Company has entered into a Master Trust Deed with the New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited, acting as 

trustee for the holders of Fixed Rate Bonds, in which the Company has agreed subject to certain exceptions, not to create 

or permit to exist a security interest over or effecting its assets to secure indebtedness, and to maintain a minimum level of 

shareholders’ equity. The Company has also entered into specific Supplementary Trust Deeds for the issue of $200 million 

of 10 year Fixed Rate Bonds and $114 million of 8 year Fixed Rate Bonds. 

The Company has entered into a negative pledge deed in favour of its bank financiers in which the Company has agreed 

subject to certain exceptions, not to create or permit to exist a security interest over or effecting its assets to secure its 

indebtedness, and to maintain certain financial ratios in relation to the Company. 

A provision of $23.4 million was established at the time of commencement of business on 1 April 1999 as a fair value 

adjustment to recognise the above market interest rates being incurred on certain tranches of the borrowings from ECNZ 

Residual. This provision has been fully amortised as at 30 June 2004.
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 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

11. Payables and Accruals

Trade payables  81,991 66,614 76,853 61,197

Employee entitlements  1,604 1,167 1,604 1,167

Sundry creditors  8,268 11,416 7,037 7,008

  91,863 79,197 85,494 69,372

12. Provisions

Provision for Prompt Payment Discounts

Balance at beginning of the year  3,322 3,191 3,322 3,191

Movements during the year  932 131 932 131

Balance at end of the year  4,254 3,322 4,254 3,322

Provision for prompt payment discounts represents the prompt payment discount allowed for electricity retail customers. 

The discount is utilised when outstanding accounts are paid by the due date as specified on the monthly electricity invoice. 

The level of discount provided for is assessed on an ongoing basis.

13. Deferred Taxation

Balance at beginning of the year  22,793 13,586 11,298 7,873

Movements during the year:

Timing differences  1,117 3,831 1,970 3,818

Acquisition of subsidiary  0 5,753 0 0

Prior year adjustments  204 (377) 20 (393)

Balance at end of the year  24,114 22,793 13,288 11,298
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 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land 

At valuation  27,076 9,301 21,518 6,522

  27,076 9,301 21,518 6,522

Freehold Buildings

At valuation  232,262 234,442 220,020 219,434

Accumulated depreciation  (29,173) (23,902) (23,443) (19,007)

  203,089 210,540 196,577 200,427

Generation Plant

At cost   245,327 230,855 31,731 20,790

Accumulated depreciation  (88,695) (74,217) (2,439) (1,719)

At valuation  1,022,138 1,022,138 1,022,138 1,022,138

Accumulated depreciation  (122,562) (99,288) (122,562) (99,288)

  1,056,208 1,079,488 928,868 941,921

Meters

At cost   54,537 51,989 54,537 51,989

Accumulated depreciation  (17,487) (14,190) (17,487) (14,190)

  37,050 37,799 37,050 37,799

Computer Hardware and Software

At cost   36,342 33,751 36,190 32,890

Accumulated depreciation  (31,615) (25,002) (31,510) (24,935)

  4,727 8,749 4,680 7,955

Other Plant and Equipment

At cost   16,509 15,190 15,467 14,553

Accumulated depreciation  (11,287) (10,254) (10,926) (10,008)

  5,222 4,936 4,541 4,545

Motor Vehicles

At cost   1,307 1,212 1,208 1,113

Accumulated depreciation  (574) (516) (518) (470)

  733 696 690 643

Capital Work in Progress

At cost  35,214 23,544 32,614 22,115

  1,369,319 1,375,053 1,226,538 1,221,927

Freehold land, buildings and generation plant shown at valuation were valued at net current value, being the lower of eco-

nomic value and depreciated replacement cost, by PriceWaterhouseCoopers (Chartered Accountants), as at 1 April 1999. 

Revalued office land and buildings, included within freehold land and buildings at balance date, are stated at their net 

current value as determined by Attevell Gerbich Havill Limited, an independent valuer, on 22 April 2004.

  parent
    2004 2003
    $000 $000

15. Investment in Subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries at cost    37,959 37,959

    37,959 37,959

Subsidiaries comprise:

company  % holding  principal activities balance date
2004 2003

Southdown Cogeneration Limited  100  100 Electricity generation 30 June

Rotokawa Generation Limited 100  100 Electricity generation 30 June

Mighty River Power Investments Limited 100  100 Investment holding 30 June

Mighty River Power (Rotokawa) Limited 100  100 Investment holding 30 June

ECNZ International Limited 100  100 Investment holding 30 June

Enalysis Limited 100  100 Energy services 30 June

Energy Auckland Limited 100  100 Non trading 30 June

First Electric Limited 100  100 Non trading 30 June

Mercury Energy Limited 100  100 Non trading 30 June

PT ECNZ Services Indonesia 100  100 Non trading 31 December

Rotokawa Geothermal Limited 100  100 Non trading 30 June

Southdown Cogen Power Limited 100  100 Non trading 30 June 

16. Joint Ventures

The Company has interests in the following joint ventures:

company  % holding  principal activities balance date
2004 2003

Rotokawa 50.0  50.0 Electricity generation 30 June

Rosedale/Greenmount 77.5  77.3 Electricity generation 30 June

Silverstream 93.0  93.0 Electricity generation 30 June

On 30 November 2002 the Group acquired the remaining 50% interest in the Southdown joint venture. The results of the 

joint venture are recorded in the prior year comparatives for the five months up to the date of acquisition of the remaining 

50% interest. From 30 November 2002 Southdown has been accounted for as a 100% subsidiary. 
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16. Joint Ventures (continued)

The Group’s share of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities of joint ventures which have been proportionately consoli-

dated within the financial statements are as follows:

  group
    2004 2003
    $000 $000

Southdown

Share of revenue    0 11,942

Share of expenses    0 12,028

     

Rotokawa

Share of revenue    2,048 3,998

Share of expenses    1,949 3,897

Non-current assets    6,484 2,584

Share of assets    6,484 2,584

Current liabilities    146 400

Share of liabilities    146 400

Rosedale/Greenmount

Share of revenue    3,078 2,209

Share of expenses    2,453 1,177

Silverstream

Share of revenue    543 590

Share of expenses    753 402

Current assets    43 701

Non-current assets    1,995 2,257

Share of assets    2,038 2,958

Current liabilities    28 209

Share of liabilities    28 209

Ownership of and responsibility for the assets of Rosedale/Greenmount are retained by the party contributing those assets. 

The financial statements of Rosedale/Greenmount are unaudited.

Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

17. Investment in Associate 

Shares at cost  250 250 0 0

Share of net surplus  131 0 0 0

Balance at end of the year  381 250 0 0

On 18 June 2003 the Group acquired a 25% ownership in TPC Holdings Limited, whose principal activity is investing in its 

100% owned subsidiary Tuaropaki Power Company Limited an electricity generator. At balance date the Group and Parent 

had made advances to Tuaropaki Power Company Limited of $3,956,000 (2003: $6,666,000) of which an amount of $1,985,000 

has been repaid subsequent to balance date. 

18. Other Non-current Assets

Energy contracts  6,431 8,005 6,431 8,005

Generation development options  4,675 3,327 1,798 150

Bond issue costs  4,388 3,106 4,388 3,106

  15,494 14,438 12,617 11,261

19. Receivables and Prepayments

Subsidiaries  0 0 127,201 101,466

Trade receivables  106,359 84,292 102,788 82,713

Sundry receivables  6,619 7,118 6,619 7,249

Prepayments  3,671 3,681 3,337 3,676

  116,649 95,091 239,945 195,104

20. Inventories

Consumable stores  3,654 2,643 3,654 2,643

Finished goods  396 373 396 373

  4,050 3,016 4,050 3,016
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 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

21. Reconciliation of Net Surplus after Taxation with 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Surplus after Taxation  99,828 113,531 115,430 77,739

Add (less) non-cash items:

Depreciation  54,636 53,696 39,882 40,933

Amortisation of energy contracts  (9,225) (15,610) (9,225) (15,610)

Amortisation of goodwill  0 469 0 0

Amortisation of other non-current assets  1,775 1,347 1,475 1,272

Release from energy contracts  (55,637) (74,153) (55,637) (74,153)

Write-off of Southdown goodwill  0 8,243 0 0

Other non-cash items  (1,594) 326 (2,172) 0

  (10,045) (25,682) (25,677) (47,558)

Add (less) movements in working capital:

(Increase) decrease in receivables and prepayments  (21,558) 4,319 (19,106) (4,213)

(Increase) in inventories  (1,034) (201) (1,034) (201)

Increase (decrease) in payables and accruals  13,598 (6,688) 17,054 (5,965)

Increase (decrease) in provision for taxation  6,481 (3,679) 21,188 (12,015)

Increase in deferred taxation  1,321 9,207 1,990 3,425

  (1,192) 2,958 20,092 (18,969)

Add (less) items classified as investing activities:

Transfers between group companies  0 0 (7,128) 0

Working capital acquired on purchase of subsidiary and joint venture 0 (9,603) 0 0

Movement in other non-current assets  397 523 397 615

  397 (9,080) (6,731) 615

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities  88,988 81,727 103,114 11,827

Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

22. Commitments

Capital Commitments

Commitments for future capital expenditure are:

Within one year  33,725 2,214 30,425 864

One to two years  0 29,750 0 29,750

  33,725 31,964 30,425 30,614

Operating Commitments

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases and other contracts are:

Within one year  1,398 1,790 1,398 1,790

One to two years  1,312 1,598 1,312 1,598

Two to five years  3,484 3,622 3,484 3,622

Later than five years  754 834 754 834

  6,948 7,844 6,948 7,844

23. Contingencies

Mighty River Power Limited and certain subsidiaries have cross-guaranteed the due and punctual payment of each other’s Guaranteed 

Indebtedness in relation to bank borrowings under a Standby and Cash Advances Facility and a Revolving Advances Facility.

Mighty River Power Limited has a number of potential on-going support projects with community based groups. 

Mighty River Power Limited has a contingent liability in respect of the Accident Compensation Corporation’s residual 

claims levy. The levy is payable annually from May 1999 for up to fifteen years. The Group’s future liability is a function of 

the Accident Compensation Corporation’s unfunded liability for past claims and future payments to employees.

Mighty River Power Limited has guaranteed payment obligations of $29.8 million to TPC Holdings Limited pursuant to 

a letter of credit provided by a bank in favour of TPC Holdings Limited. 

Mighty River Power Limited holds land and interests that may be affected by certain claims that have been brought or 

are pending against the Crown under the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975. In the event that a recommendation is made by the 

Waitangi Tribunal for the return of some or all of the affected land, and that recommendation is confirmed by the Crown, 

resumption would be effected by the Crown under the Public Works Act 1981 and compensation would be payable to Mighty 

River Power Limited.
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24. Resource Consents

Mighty River Power Limited requires land, water and air consents, obtained under the Resource Management Act 1991 

(the Act), to enable it to operate its geothermal, thermal and hydro power stations. The duration of consents under the 

Act is for a maximum of 35 years. The current resource consents within which the hydro power stations operate nominally 

expired on 1 October 2001 but remain in effect until such time as the Company’s applications for new consents are heard 

and determined. The consenting authority (Waikato Regional Council) heard the application in November 2002. The hear-

ings were closed on 14 August 2003. Seven parties appealed the consent decision. A number of these appeals have been 

resolved, however, the final form of the Consent will not be known until completion of the Appeals process.

25. Segment Information

Mighty River Power Limited operates predominantly in one segment, being the generation and marketing of energy in New Zealand.

26. Financial Instruments

Revenue Risk - Energy Contracts

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, enters into energy contracts that establish a fixed price at which future 

specified quantities of electricity are purchased, sold or otherwise exchanged. The Group’s exposure to spot electricity 

prices is limited by a Board approved Wholesale Electricity Trading Risk Management Policy. 

On maturity of the energy contracts, any difference between the hedge price and the spot market price is settled between 

the parties. Settlement occurs irrespective of the amount of electricity actually supplied or consumed.

Credit Risk

To the extent that Mighty River Power Limited has a receivable from another party, there is a credit risk in the event of 

non-performance by that counter party. Financial instruments which potentially subject the Group to credit risk principally 

consist of bank balances, receivables, investments and interest rate swaps.

Mighty River Power Limited manages its exposure to credit risk. The Group performs credit evaluations on all electricity 

customers and normally requires a bond from customers who have yet to establish a suitable credit history with Mighty 

River Power Limited.

The Group monitors the credit quality of the major financial institutions that are counter parties to its off balance sheet 

financial instruments and does not anticipate non-performance by the counter parties.

With respect to energy contracts, the Group has a potential credit risk exposure to the counter party dependent on the spot 

market price at settlement, and does not anticipate any non-performance of any obligations which may exist on maturity of 

these contracts. Credit risk in relation to these counter-parties is managed in accordance with a Board approved Wholesale 

Electricity Trading Risk Management Policy.

Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Maximum exposures to credit risk at balance date are:

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

Bank balances  3,457 4,882 3,382 4,170

Receivables  107,552 87,413 231,182 187,431

Taxation receivable  0 4,449 0 12,252

Investments  4,337 6,916 3,956 6,666

Interest rate swaps  3,205 2,522 3,205 2,522

The above maximum exposures are net of any recognised provision for losses on these financial instruments. Collateral 

in the form of customer bonds totalling $437,000 is held in respect of the above amounts.

Concentrations of credit risk

Included in receivables are the following balances:

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

Energy Clearing House Limited  19,545 0 19,545 0

M-co Clearing House Limited  0 19,867 0 19,867

The Group does not have any other significant concentrations of credit risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Mighty River Power Limited has exposure to foreign exchange risk as a result of transactions denominated in foreign currencies. 

The Group uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts and foreign currency options to manage these exposures. At 

balance date the principal or contract amounts of foreign currency forward exchange contracts and foreign currency options are:

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts  3,208 97 3,208 97

Foreign currency options  36,529 0 36,529 0

At balance date the Group also has US funds of $801,128 (2003: $451,052) in US dollar accounts that are not hedged. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Mighty River Power Limited has exposure to interest rate risk to the extent that it borrows for a fixed term at floating interest 

rates. The Group manages its cost of borrowing by placing limits on the proportion of floating to fixed rate borrowings.

The Group uses interest rate swaps and interest rate options to manage interest rate risk.

At balance date the principal or contract amounts of interest rate swaps and interest rate options outstanding are:

 group parent
  2004 2003 2004 2003
  $000 $000 $000 $000

Interest rate swaps  585,000 400,000 585,000 400,000

Interest rate options  55,000 50,000 55,000 50,000

Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Repricing Analysis

The following tables identify the periods in which repriced financial instruments are subject to interest rate risk. The overall 

effective interest rate incorporates the effect of the relevant derivative contracts.

        later  
 effective  within one to  two to  than
  interest rate total one year two years five years five years

group and parent 2004 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets

Cash 6.3% 3,457 3,457 0 0 0

Investments 18.0% 3,956 0 0 0 3,956

Total Assets  7,413 3,457 0 0 3,956

Less Liabilities

Bank loans (unsecured) 6.1% 54,000 54,000 0 0 0

Commercial paper (unsecured) 6.1% 44,494 44,494 0 0 0

Fixed Rate Bonds (unsecured) 6.9% 313,821 0 0 0 313,821

ECNZ Residual loans (unsecured) 8.0% 16,000 0 0 16,000 0

Total Liabilities  428,315 98,494 0 16,000 313,821

Off Balance Sheet

Interest rate swaps  585,000 15,000 50,000 400,000 120,000

Interest rate options  55,000 25,000 0 15,000 15,000

Repricing Profile  219,098 (55,037) 50,000 399,000 (174,865)
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Notes to the Financial Statements  (continued) For the year ended 30 June 2004

26. Financial Instruments (continued)

        later  
 effective  within one to  two to  than
  interest rate total one year two years five years five years

group and parent 2003 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets

Cash 5.6% 4,882 4,882 0 0 0

Investments 18.0% 6,666 0 0 0 6,666

Total Assets  11,548 4,882 0 0 6,666

Less Liabilities

Bank loans (unsecured) 5.6% 126,000 36,000 0 90,000 0

Commercial paper (unsecured) 5.3% 128,771 0 128,771 0 0

Fixed Rate Bonds (unsecured) 7.0% 200,000 0 0 200,000 0

ECNZ Residual loans (unsecured) 8.0% 16,000 0 0 0 16,000

Total Liabilities  470,771 36,000 128,771 290,000 16,000

Off Balance Sheet

Interest rate swaps  400,000 35,000 15,000 245,000 105,000

Interest rate options  50,000 25,000 25,000 0 0

Repricing Profile  (9,223) 28,882 (88,771) (45,000) 95,666

26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair Values 

The estimated fair values of financial instruments that differ from carrying values are as follows:

 group and parent group and parent
 2004 2003
  carrying  fair  carrying fair 
  value value value value

  $000 $000 $000 $000

Interest rate swaps  3,205 (7,447) 2,522 (13,805)

Interest rate options  712 571 654 5

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts  0 0 0 (1)

Foreign currency options  1,798 (390) 0 0

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:

Bank balances, receivables, payables, loans, investments 

The carrying amount is the fair value for each of these classes of financial instrument and accordingly they are excluded 

from the table above.

Foreign currency options and foreign currency forward exchange contracts 

The fair value of these classes of financial instruments is based on the quoted market price of comparable instruments.

Interest rate swaps and interest rate options 

The fair value of these classes of financial instruments is the current market valuation provided by the Group’s bankers.

Energy contracts 

The fair value of energy price hedge contracts varies in accordance with the market price for electricity.

As at balance date, the face value of energy contracts amounted to $470.5 million (2003: $1,553.6 million) with terms of up to 10 years.

The carrying value of energy contracts in the financial statements of $1.2 million (2003: $66.1 million) represents the 

value of the contracts acquired by the Group on 1 April 1999, as valued by PriceWaterhouseCoopers, less the amortisation 

credited to the statement of financial performance since the date of acquisition.
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27. Related Party Transactions

During the year the Company entered into the following transactions with subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:

    2004 2003
    $000 $000

Management fees charged to subsidiaries/joint ventures    2,319 1,531

Advances to subsidiaries    127,201 101,466

Advances to associate    3,956 6,666

Advances are interest free and repayable on demand with the exception of Mighty River Power Investments Limited with 

regard to advances in Mighty River Power (Rotokawa) Limited and Southdown Cogeneration Limited.

Mighty River Power Limited uses the services of a number of law firms including Simpson Grierson. Carole Durbin, a 

director and deputy chair, is a partner in the law firm Simpson Grierson. Other partners and staff of that firm have ren-

dered various legal services to the Group in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms. The Company 

has incurred expenditure for the period of $188,107 (2003: $294,420) with Simpson Grierson with related amounts payable 

at balance date of $21,769 (2003: $26,080).

Doug Heffernan (Chief Executive), a director of Mighty River Power Investments Limited and its subsidiaries, is also a 

director of TPC Holdings Limited and Tuaropaki Power Company Limited and Tim Densem (General Manager Hydro/Thermal) 

is a director of Damwatch Services Limited. 

The Company has the following transactions and balances with these entities:

Tuaropaki Power Company Limited

Interest income from advances totalled $826,343 (2003: $1,287,842) and related amounts receivable at balance date of $1,185,534 

(2003: $991,228). 

Net receipts (payments) on energy contracts totalled $3,099,351 (2003: ($12,691,368)) and related amounts receivable 

(payable) at balance date of ($670,466) (2003: ($433,518)).

Revenue under the Mokai operations and maintenance contract of $1,885,765 (2003: $2,117,179) and related amounts 

receivable at balance date of $366,018 (2003: $484,075).

Damwatch Services Limited

Monitoring services expense for the period of $1,994,548 (2003: $1,746,045) and related amounts payable at balance date 

of $nil (2003: $nil). 

Directors and employees of the Group deal with Mighty River Power Limited as electricity consumers on normal terms 

and conditions within the ordinary course of trading activities. 

No related party debts have been written off or forgiven during the year. 

The ultimate shareholder of Mighty River Power Limited is the Crown. All transactions with the Crown and other State-

Owned Enterprises are at arm’s length, and it is considered that these do not fall within the intended scope of related 

party disclosures.

29.Subsequent Events

There are no events subsequent to balance date that would affect the fair presentation of these financial statements.
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 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Statement of Financial Position     

Equity and Liabilities     

Share capital 377,561  377,561  377,561  377,561  377,561 

Reserves 508,963  484,135  382,404  335,321  276,261 

 886,524  861,696  759,965  712,882  653,822 

Non-current liabilities     

Loans  329,821  434,771  209,402  329,721  476,610 

Other 1,204  56,002  133,843  157,596  186,986 

 331,025  490,773  343,245  487,317  663,596 

Current liabilities     

Loans 98,494  36,000  252,657  200,146  126,824 

Other 197,263  115,376  124,780  213,093  172,096 

 295,757  151,376  377,437  413,239  298,920 

Total equity and liabilities 1,513,306  1,503,845  1,480,647  1,613,438  1,616,338 

Assets     

Non-current assets     

Property, plant and equipment 1,369,319  1,375,053  1,355,059  1,387,171  1,427,931 

Other 17,846 21,354  19,318  37,615  41,623 

 1,387,165  1,396,407  1,374,377  1,424,786  1,469,554 

Current assets     

Cash 3,457  4,882  3,275  5,400  5,559 

Other 122,684  102,556  102,995  183,252  141,225 

 126,141  107,438  106,270  188,652  146,784 

Total assets 1,513,306  1,503,845  1,480,647  1,613,438  1,616,338

Five Year Financial Review  (continued)
     

 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Statement of Financial Performance     

Operating Revenue  599,248  646,246  595,108  646,730  476,544 

Operating surplus before interest & non-recurring items 199,551  119,474  87,177  103,946  82,423 

Net interest (29,401) (27,083) (26,658) (34,899) (29,077)

Non-recurring items (14,705) 34,217  6,772  7,660  619 

Surplus before taxation 155,445  126,608  67,291  76,707  53,965 

Taxation expense (55,748) (13,077) (20,208) (17,647) (12,653)

Surplus after taxation 99,697  113,531  47,083  59,060  41,312 

Share of associate net surplus 131  0     0   0   0

Net surplus after taxation 99,828  113,531  47,083  59,060  41,312 

     

Statement of Cash Flows     

Operating cashflow 88,988  81,727  77,872  110,322  68,489 

Investing cashflow (47,957) (28,532) (16,696) (11,324) (107,930)

Financing cashflow (42,456) (51,588) (63,301) (99,157) 36,979 

Net (decrease) increase in cash (1,425) 1,607  (2,125) (159) (2,462)

Opening cash 4,882  3,275  5,400  5,559  8,021 

Closing cash 3,457  4,882  3,275  5,400  5,559 

     

Performance Indicators     

Return on average shareholders’ equity 11.4% 14.0% 6.4% 8.6% 6.5%

Total equity/total assets 58.6% 57.3% 51.3% 44.2% 40.5%

Net debt/net debt plus equity 32.4% 35.1% 37.6% 42.4% 47.8%

FFO/interest expense (times) 6.8x 4.1x 3.5x 3.2x 2.7x

Five Year Financial Review
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Rob Challinor

Northington Partners Limited: Director and Shareholder

L.E.K. Consulting Pty Limited: Australasian Advisory Board Member

Sheffield Limited: Chairman

Kingfish Limited: Chairman

Copthorne Waitangi Resort: Joint Venture Committee Member

The Warehouse Group Limited: Director

Ports of Auckland Limited: Director

Carole Durbin

Simpson Grierson: Partner

Earthquake Commission: Commissioner

Fidelity Life: Director

Legal Services Agency: Chair

Caroline Ball

Strategic Developments Limited: Director

Work and Income Enterprise Awards: Advisory Panel Member

Western Institute of Technology at Taranaki: Deputy Chair

Taranaki District Health Board: Advisory Committee Member

Ian Fraser

Beca Carter Hollings & Ferner Ltd: Managing Director

Beca Group Limited: Executive Director

David McConnell

McConnell International Ltd: Managing Director

McConnell International Property Limited: Director

Steelpipe New Zealand Limited: Director

Bisleys Environmental Limited: Director

Hawkins Construction Limited: Director

HGM Group Limited: Director

Committee for Auckland: Trustee

Counties Manukau Pacific Trust: Trustee

Sandy Maier

Argent Networks: Director

Auckland Regional Economic Development 

Strategy Implementation Group: Chairman

Caribbean Equity Fund: Investment Committee Chairman

Colville Equities Ltd: Director

Equitable Group of Companies: Director

Esphion Limited: Director

Intelligent Optical Systems Japan, KK (Japan): Director

Maier Limited: Director

McConnell International Limited: Director

New Plymouth Energy Advisors Limited: Director

Pacific Print Group Limited: Director

Porter Novelli Investor Relations Advisory Board: Director

RECT Funds Management Ltd: Director

Synergy Limited: Director

Tilda Holdings Limited: Director

Vertex Group Holdings Limited: Director

Tania Simpson

Kokakotaea Ltd: Director 

Kowhai Consulting Limited: Director 

Kowhai Trust: Trustee 

Tui Trust: Trustee 

John Baird

APL Ltd: Director

Auckland Rugby: Director

Eden Park Board of Control: Member

Motion Industries Ltd: Chair

Ovita Ltd: Chair

Project K: Trustee

Sleepyhead Ltd: Director

South Island Forklifts Ltd: Director and Shareholder

Waitangi Tribunal: Member

Declaration of General Interest pursuant to Section 140 (2) of the Companies Act 1993 as at 25 August 2004 Shareholders: In accordance with the State-Owned Enterprises 

Act 1986, the Company has two shareholders:

The Minister for State-Owned Enterprises (Hon. Mark 

Burton) and Minister of Finance (Hon. Dr. Michael Cullen).

In accordance with Section 15 of the Act, an annual report 

is to be submitted to the shareholding ministers, such report 

to contain sufficient information to enable an informed assess-

ment to be made of the operations of the group. The group will 

provide any other information requested by the shareholding 

ministers pursuant to Section 18 of the Act.

Principal Activities: The principal activities of the group are:

• generation of electricity including operation and mainte-

nance of generating plant and management of hydro and 

geothermal reservoirs

• energy trading and risk management

• retailing of energy to customers including marketing of 

value added products and measurement of energy sales.

Financial Performance: A full set of financial statements of 

Mighty River Power Limited and the Group for the 12 month 

period to 30 June 2004 are included on pages 58 to 84 of 

this report. These statements include details of the group’s 

accounting policies on pages 63 to 66.

Remuneration of Directors: The following table sets out the 

total remuneration and other benefits received by each board 

member as a director of Mighty River Power Limited for the 

reporting period. 

Rob Challinor $64,500

Carole Durbin $41,000

Caroline Ball $33,250

Ian Fraser* $33,250

Sandy Maier $33,250

David McConnell $33,250

Tania Simpson $33,250

Wayne Walden $28,042

John Baird $2,604

*In addition a payment of $2,604 was made relating to the previous financial year

The shareholding ministers advise the board of the annual 

total fee to be allocated between the directors.

None of the directors of Mighty River Power Limited 

received any fees as director of any subsidiary company of 

Mighty River Power Limited.

Disclosures of interests: The general disclosures of interest 

made by the directors of Mighty River Power Limited pursu-

ant to Section 140 (2) of the Companies Act 1993 are shown 

on page 89. There were no declarations of interests made 

pursuant to Section 140 (1) of the Companies Act 1993 that 

were entered in the interests register of Mighty River Power 

Limited or its subsidiaries for the reporting period. No director 

of Mighty River Power Limited is a shareholder of Mighty River 

Power Limited or any of its subsidiaries.

Statutory Information
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Directors 

Rob Challinor, BCom, FCA, CMA, FCIS (Chairman) 

Carole Durbin, BCom, LLB (Hons) FAMINZ, A.C.I. Arb. 

(Deputy Chair) 

Caroline Ball, BE Chem (Hons) 

Ian Fraser, BE (Hons), FIPENZ 

Sandy Maier, JD, BA 

David McConnell, BE (Hons), MBA 

Tania Simpson, BA, MMM 

John Baird, BSc, BA, MA (Hons), Rhodes 

Scholar, Dip Marketing (UK)

Executive Management

Doug Heffernan, BE (Hons), ME, PhD, FIPENZ 

(Chief Executive) 

Tim Densem, BE (Elec.) (Hons), PhD 

(General Manager Hydro/Thermal) 

John Foote, BSc, BE (Civil) (Group Operations Manager) 

Tony Gray, FCA (Group Finance Manager) 

Stuart Lush, BE (Hons), MIPENZ 

(General Manager Generation Development) 

William Meek, BCom (Hons) (Enterprise Risk Strategist) 

James Moulder, BA, BCA (General Manager Trading) 

David Reeve, NZCE (General Manager Metrix) 

Neil Williams, BA (General Manager External Affairs) 

Greg Raasch, BSc, MSc, PE (Prof Engineer) 

(General Manager Geothermal)

Registered Office 

Level 19, 1 Queen Street, Auckland 

Telephone: 09 308 8200, Facsimile: 09 308 8209 

Email: enquiries@mightyriver.co.nz 

Website: www.mightyriverpower.co.nz 

Auditor 

The Auditor-General pursuant to section 

14 of the Public Audit Act 2001.

Mr G A Fulton of Ernst & Young was 

appointed in May 1999 to perform the audit on behalf of 

the Auditor-General. 

Solicitors 

Baldwin Shelston Waters (Auckland) 

Bell Gully (Auckland and Wellington) 

Chapman Tripp (Auckland and Wellington) 

Cowper Campbell (Auckland) 

Kensington Swan

Simpson Grierson (Auckland and Wellington) 

Bankers 

ANZ National Bank 

ASB Bank 

Bank of New Zealand 

Citibank 

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 

Deutsche Bank 

Westpac Institutional Bank

Directory

Indemnity and Insurance: Mighty River Power Limited has 

resolved to indemnify directors and employees for any costs 

or liabilities referred to in Section 162 (3) and 162 (4) of the 

Companies Act 1993. The Company has arranged insurance 

for those directors and employees in respect of any liability or 

costs referred to in Section 162 (5) of the Companies Act 1993.

Employee Remuneration: During the reporting year, the number 

of employees (including former employees) of Mighty River Power 

Limited and its subsidiaries, not being directors, who received 

remuneration and other benefits in excess of $100,000 are:

Remuneration Bands Number of Employees

$100,001 - $110,000 11

$110,001 - $120,000 8

$120,001 - $130,000 6

$130,001 - $140,000 3

$140,001 - $150,000 2

$150,001 - $160,000 2

$160,001 - $170,000  3

$200,001 - $210,000 1

$220,001 - $230,000 1

$230,001 - $240,000 1

$250,001 - $260,000 1

$320,001 - $330,000 1

$340,001 - $350,000 1

$360,001 - $370,000 1*

$770,000 - $780,000 1**

Company Credit Rating: As at 30 June 2004, the Company had 

the following credit rating:

Standard & Poor’s Short-Term: [A-2] Long-Term: [BBB +]

Outlook: Stable

Loans to Directors: There were no loans by the group to 

directors.

Directors’ Use of Information: There were no notices from 

directors of the group requesting to use Company informa-

tion received in their capacity as directors which would not 

otherwise have been available to them.

Events Subsequent to Balance Date: The directors are not aware 

of any circumstance since the end of the year that has signifi-

cantly or may significantly affect the operations of the group.

Annual Report Certificate: This annual report is dated 25 August 

2004 and is signed on behalf of the board by:

Statutory Information (continued)

* this includes a retention payment ** this includes provision for a retention payment

Rob Challinor

Chairman

25 August 2004

Carole Durbin

Deputy Chair

25 August 2004

90 Mighty River Power Limited Annual Report 2004 91Mighty River Power Limited Annual Report 2004




